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The Road Forward

Dear Shareholder,

In all likelihood, this will be our last annual report to shareholders. As you all are aware, the
Corning Natural Gas Holding Corporation’s (“Company”’) Board of Directors voted to accept an
offer for the Company from an affiliate of Argo Infrastructure Partners (Argo). We believe this
offer is good for you, our shareholders, but also good for our employees, our customers, and the
communities we serve. In a year, you will likely no longer be a shareholder. Once the
transaction is complete, the Company will no longer be publicly traded,

but we will continue to serve our customers and communities

with the same commitment to high quality customer

service and safety as in the past.



Minnewaska Sate Park
Preserve, Catskills, NY



N
<&
-
> Z
Q oo
— (O]
2 <
(V)] =
&
te &
“ce ped®

Our Response to COVID-19

Despite our optimism for 2021 and beyond, 2020 was a dominated by the pandemic. From both
human and economic perspectives, the pandemic changed our Company. As a provider of essential
gas and electric energy services , we could not pause our business. Safety, reliability, and customer
services had to be maintained, even if COVID-19 hamstrung nearly every aspect of operations.
Pandemic impacts included lower sales, higher costs, new operating rules, and emergency
government regulations. Despite a warm winter and the challenges of coronavirus, we still
maintained earnings and revenue levels. This can all be traced back to how employees stepped up,

navigated difficult waters, and showed their true colors.




Our Dedication to Safety and Reducing

Our Environmental Footprint

Our suite of utilities strives to maintain a safe and Miles of Pipellcik to Replace

reliable system for our customers and the businesses e
146

we serve. Our oldest utility, Corning Natural Gas,

has been working for decades to reduce leaks, lost
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pipe and service lines with new, state-of-the art pipe.
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Since 2005, the company has replaced 135.6 miles of YEAR

main pipeline and 5,828 service lines. Our lost and

unaccounted for gas is close to zero, and we had less
than 50 leaks remaining at the end of 2020, a nearly
90% reduction over the past 15 years. We have
eliminated nearly all the higher risk and higher
volume leaks, with a goal to achieve zero leaks at all
three utilities in five years. The company and its

dedicated operations department continue to do what

i1s needed to reduce our environmental footprint,
including reducing greenhouse gas emissions, while
providing an inexpensive, reliable energy source for

our customers.

Kyle Smith sweeps
the road during a
leak survey.




Our Commitment to
Electric and Gas
Reliability

Pike County Light & Power
continues to make improvements in
reliability. Since the acquisition in
2016, the company has implemented
a vegetation management program,
maintaining 100 miles every five
years. The use of an aerial drone and
infrared thermal camera was used to
identify any potential hot spots in
the overhead electric system, as well
as to simultaneously inspect pole top
equipment. The company is also
implementing system redundancy in
phases to increase customer
reliability.

The gas long-term infrastructure
improvement plan was initiated in
2019 to replace various segments of
bare steel and cast-iron pipe over the
next ten years.

The company is actively engaged
with stakeholders and community
members and routinely responds to
customer outage inquiries on
Facebook or via phone while
maintaining an outage map on the
Pike website. When an outage does
occur, the average interruption time
is about 3 hours. (see chart top left)

The residential electric default
service charge has decreased and
has been trending around 4¢/kWh
for the past two years. (see chart top
right)
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Children stop by the
Leatherstocking booth
for watermelon at the

2019 National Night
Out in support of local CNG Employees Kelly Van Etten (L)

law enforcement. and Heather Morich (R) at the
United Way Day of Action in 2018.

Our Commitment to Community

Corning Natural Gas (CNG) continues to support various community 501(c) (3), non-profits, and
other organizations. Company employees have donated their blood (literally), sweat, and tears to
further philanthropic giving amongst the most vulnerable. CNG hosts two blood drives every
year. Employees donate money to ProAction for Christmas presents for needy families, and the
United Way Day of Action has also been the recipient of employee time. Corning has donated
over 48 times to support various community initiatives since 2017. Additionally, Corning allows

the free use of its Blue Flame room to the public for educational purposes.

Over the past four years, Pike County Light & Power has donated 67 times to various
organizations, including donating saplings recently to the Center for Developmental Disabilities
(photo above right) and backpacks to the Delaware Valley Elementary School. Leatherstocking
Gas has donated over 32 times to various local groups and charities, including Christmas in

Montrose, the Susquehanna County Sheriff’s Association, and the Montrose Area High School

sports program, among others.




Our Fiscal Responsibility

Corning Natural Gas Holding Corporation has successfully managed to increase its asset holdings
over the past several years, and really, since its inception in 1904 as Crystal City Gas Company.
The Company has increased its dividend payout to shareholders for eleven consecutive years,
while simultaneously increasing shareholder equity to just under $36 million in 2020 from $2.6
million in 2006. Net income has trended upwards, as have assets, which totaled over $136 million
last year. In 2019, we purchased Corning Incorporated’s pipeline system, and in 2020, we
purchased the other 50% of Leatherstocking Gas Company. These assets were financed with bank
debt and preferred stock, and in conjunction with organic growth projects, demonstrate how we

endeavor to be good stewards with your investment dollars in the Company.




Our Technology

For a smaller utility holding company, we have developed a full array of
new technologies. These include upgraded gas and electric SCADA
systems; replacing wooden crossarms on utility poles with stronger
fiberglass crossarms, and using epoxy instead of ceramic insulators; the
exclusive use of high-density plastic pipe; ERT and AMR meters; new
customer information software and payment options; new cyber security
and technological capabilities, new connectivity between our utilities, and
extensive employee cybersecurity training. We have also revamped all
three company websites. Some exciting items in development include a
new mapping platform that will be integrated with pipeline and easement
data for real time use in the field, and our own app with texting capabilities
for communication with both employees and customers. Our technology
deployment is focused on improving customer service, reliability, and

operations, making it targeted, and to date, highly successful.

Our Record of Excellence

A Corning ops line crew
works in a trench box.

The CNG customer service department, currently managed by Charlene Faulk, pictured below (L)

with Customer Service Rep Samara Gnieweki (R), continues to rank highly among Corning

Natural Gas customers. The past eight years has shown an upward trend in both percentage of

satisfied customers and average customer service scores, and this despite 2020 being in the midst

of a pandemic. The success of our customer service department at CNG is replicated at both Pike

and Leatherstocking. Our people are part of the communities we serve, and they perform

exceptionally well. Our customer service staff take pride in their care of customers and it shows.

We have three top tier customer service utilities, as measured by our survey results and unsolicited

customer comments.




Our Focus on Growth

Our smallest utility, Leatherstocking Gas Company, has been the focus of some of our larger
growth projects. Located in Susquehanna and Bradford Counties in Pennsylvania,

Leatherstocking has been expanding from the Montrose Borough and Bridgewater Township
into South Montrose and just recently completed an extension along State Route 29. The
company will be breaking ground in Wyalusing Township in the summer of 2021, bringing
previously unavailable natural gas to customers sitting on top of the gas rich Marcellus Shale
region of Northeast PA. Leatherstocking has also applied for a USDA Rural Energy Savings
Program loan that will allow the company to relend money in its service territory for various

homeowner energy efficiency and natural gas heating system improvements.

Corning Natural Gas (CNG) continues expanding. The old hospital site in Corning is being
converted into over 100 high-end apartment units, part of County Route 333 in Campbell has

been piped with natural gas, and several other projects are in various stages of development.

Pike County Light & Power, acquired in 2016, and located in the eastern most Poconos in
Pennsylvania, is experiencing organic load growth for both natural gas and electricity. There are
a number of small commercial and residential projects in development or under construction,

and various light industrial startups are interested in locating to the region.

The focus on growth is not possible without access to nearby gas or electric supply. Our region
is fortunate that we have abundant, inexpensive, clean, American energy sources like the
Trenton Black River and Marcellus Shale gas formations that benefit our customers. Because of

this, CNG in particular, routinely has one of the lowest gas costs in New York State.

State Route 29 gas
expansion to Ellsworth
Drive in South Montrose




Final Reflections

I would be remiss if I did not recognize the dedication, loyalty, and
contributions of a number of long-tenured employees, including our
former CFO Fi Sarhangi, who retired in 2020, pictured left. The 2020
retirees were great team members that really cared about the Company.
We still have a significant number of tenured, experienced employees

who work well with our newly hired team members.

For those of you that don’t know me personally, I am in the former “experienced” category. I
started at Corning Natural Gas in December 2006, now having 45 years of experience in the energy
industry. I have seen the Company move from a survival mode to one of excellence and optimism.
The invaluable contributions of our employees and shareholders, our suppliers, customers, lenders,

and local communities have all contributed to our success.

Many of you have owned our stock for decades. I want to thank you all for your loyalty and
friendship. Given this may be your last year as a shareholder, please feel free to send me your

thoughts and comments at mgerman@corninggas.com. I hope we are leaving you with the

satisfaction that you made a wise investment, and that you will remember us and smile.

Sincerely,

Michael I. German
CEO and President

HDPE pipe stored at the Maxwell Compressor Station
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EXPLANATORY NOTE

Corning Natural Gas Holding Corporation (the “Holding Company”) is a successor issuer to Corning Natural Gas Corporation
(“Corning Gas” or the “Gas Company”) as of November 12, 2013, as a result of a share-for-share exchange creating a holding
company structure. The Gas Company became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Holding Company.

As used in this Form 10-K, the term “Company,” “we,” or “us,” refers to the consolidated companies, the terms “Gas Company” and
“Corning Gas” mean Corning Natural Gas Corporation, the term “Pike” means Pike County Light & Power Company, and the term
“Leatherstocking Companies” means the combination of Leatherstocking Gas Company, LLC and Leatherstocking Pipeline
Company, LLC, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise. Except as otherwise stated, the information contained in this Form 10-
K is as of September 30, 2020.

PART 1
ITEM 1 - BUSINESS
General

Corning Natural Gas Holding Corporation was incorporated in New York in July 2013 to serve as a holding company for the Gas
Company and its dormant subsidiary Corning Natural Gas Appliance Corporation (the “Appliance Company”), Pike County Light &
Power Company (“Pike”), Leatherstocking Gas Company, LLC (“Leatherstocking Gas”), and Leatherstocking Pipeline Company,
LLC (“Leatherstocking Pipeline”). The Holding Company also owns 50% of Leatherstocking Gas of New York, Inc.
(“Leatherstocking NY”). As used in this document, the term “the Company” refers to the consolidated operations of the Holding
Company, Gas Company, Pike, and (from July 1, 2020) the Leatherstocking Companies.

The Company’s principal executive offices are located at 330 W. William Street, Corning New York, 14830, the telephone number
is (607) 936-3755, and our website is www.corninggas.com.

Business

The Company’s primary business, through its subsidiaries Corning Gas, Pike, and the Leatherstocking Companies, is natural gas and
electric distribution. Corning Gas serves approximately 15,000 residential, commercial, industrial, and municipal customers in the
Corning, Hammondsport, and Virgil, New York areas, as well as two other gas utilities which serve the Elmira and Bath, New York
areas. It is franchised to supply gas service in all of the political subdivisions in which it operates. The Gas Company is under the
jurisdiction of the New York Public Service Commission (“NYPSC”) which oversees and sets rates for New York gas distribution
companies. In addition, the Gas Company has contracts with Corning Incorporated and Woodhull Municipal Gas Company, a small
local utility, to provide maintenance service on their gas lines. Pike is an electric and gas utility regulated by the
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (“PAPUC”). Pike provides electric service to approximately 4,800 customers in the
Townships of Westfall, Milford, the northern part of Dingman, and in the Boroughs of Milford, and Matamoras. Pike
provides natural gas service to 1,200 customers in Westfall Township and the Borough of Matamoras. All of these communities are
located in Pike County, Pennsylvania. Additionally, Leatherstocking Gas is also regulated by the PAPUC and
distributes gas in Susquehanna and Bradford Counties, Pennsylvania. Leatherstocking Pipeline, an unregulated company, has
served one customer in Lawton, Pennsylvania and has had no revenues since 2018. Leatherstocking NY has an application pending
before the NYPSC for authority to provide gas distribution services in Broome County, New York.

Gas and Electric Supply

Corning Gas has contracted with various sources to provide natural gas to our distribution system. The Gas Company contracts for
pipeline capacity, as well as storage capacity of approximately 736,000 dekatherms (“Dth”). The Company manages its transportation
and storage capacity with internal resources. Pike has contracted with Orange and Rockland Utilities, Inc. (“O&R”) to provide
electricity and natural gas according to agreements until August 2022, subject to renewal. Leatherstocking Gas has a supply
agreement with Cabot Oil and Gas.

Corning Gas secured the NYPSC-required fixed price and storage gas supply for the 2020-2021 winter season and is managing its
storage and gas supply contracts following its gas supply and acquisition plan. Assuming no extraordinary conditions for the winter
season, gas supply, flowing, and storage will be adequate to serve its approximately 15,000 customers.

Corning Gas does not expect a shortage of natural gas to impact our business over the next five to ten years. Natural gas supply over
the last several years has been positive, and domestic reserves and production have increased. This is especially true in proximity to
our distribution network. We likewise anticipate no shortages of the necessary pipes and valves for safe distribution of natural gas and
continue to receive material inventory from various reliable sources. We also have confidence that our agreement with O&R will



enable Pike to meet all our electric and gas needs for Pike’s customers until August 2022, subject to renewal, and that Cabot Oil
and Gas will be able to continue reliably supplying Leatherstocking Gas.

Seasonality

The Company’s business is seasonal in nature, and sales for each quarter of the year vary and are not comparable. Sales
vary depending on seasonal variations in temperature. Gas sales peak in the winter, while Pike’s electric sales peak in the summer.

Significant Customers

The Gas Company has three major customers - Corning Incorporated, New York State Electric & Gas, and Bath Electric, Gas &
Water Systems. In total, these customers accounted for approximately 14.32% of the Gas Company’s revenues in the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2020 (“FY 2020”) and 15.18% in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019 (“FY 2019”). The loss of any of
these customers would have an adverse impact on our financial results.

Employees

The Company had 72 employees as of September 30, 2020, and 64 as of September 30, 2019. Of this total, approximately one third
are union labor working under a union contract effective until April 5, 2021.

Competition

Historically, the competition in the Gas Company’s residential market and Pike’s and Leatherstocking Gas’s gas franchise territories has
been primarily from electricity, fuel oil, and propane. The price of gas remains low in comparison to that of alternative fuels in our
service territories and our competitive position in the residential, commercial, and industrial markets continues to be strong.
When we expand our distribution system to attract new customers, natural gas enjoys a price advantage over other fuels today. Pike
electric has not faced significant competition to date. ~Although not material today, we could experience competition from customer
owned solar in the future.

Environmental Regulation

We believe we are in compliance with present federal, state, and local provisions relating to the protection of the environment. We do
not expect that continued compliance with these requirements will have any material adverse effect on our capital expenditures,
earnings, and financial position. The Company has no former manufactured gas plant sites (MGP), and is not a party to any
environmental litigation, proceedings, or complaints.

Regulatory Matters

On June 15, 2017, the NYPSC issued an Order Adopting Terms of Joint Proposal and Establishing Gas Rate Plan (the “June 2017
Order”) adopting the Joint Proposal without substantive modification. In February 2020, Corning Gas filed a new rate case with the
NYPSC. Pike is operating under a rate order issued effective September 1, 2014, extended to March 1, 2018, and continuing until the
next rate case under the terms of our acquisition (for additional information, see “Regulatory Matters — Pike”). In October 2020, Pike
filed rate cases for both electric and gas operations.

For additional information see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Regulatory
Matters”.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Our operations could be adversely affected by fluctuations in the price of natural gas and electricity.

Prices for natural gas and electricity are subject to volatile fluctuations in response to changes in supply and other market conditions.
While these costs are usually passed on to customers of the Gas Company pursuant to natural gas adjustment clauses, and to customers
of Pike and Leatherstocking Gas through the gas rate cost, and therefore do not pose a direct risk to earnings, we are unable to predict
what effect a sharp increase in natural gas and electricity prices may have on our customers’ energy consumption or ability to pay.
Higher prices to customers can lead to higher bad debt expense and customer conservation. Higher prices may also have an adverse
effect on our cash flow as we are typically required to pay for our natural gas and electricity prior to receiving payments for the natural
gas or electricity from our customers.



Operational issues beyond our control could have an adverse effect on our business.

Pike, Leatherstocking Gas, and the Gas Company’s ability to provide natural gas and electricity depends both on our own operations
and facilities and that of third parties, including local gas producers, natural gas pipeline operators, and our electric supplier from
whom we receive our natural gas and electric supplies. The loss of use or destruction of our facilities or the facilities of third parties
due to extreme weather conditions, breakdowns, war, acts of terrorism, or other occurrences could greatly reduce potential earnings
and cash flows and increase our costs of repairs and replacement of assets. Although we carry property insurance to protect our assets,
and regulatory policies of the NYPSC and PAPUC provide the opportunity for deferral and recovery of extraordinary incremental
costs associated with losses for such incidents, our losses may not be fully recoverable through insurance or customer rates.
Additionally, the effect of the coronavirus pandemic could adversely affect our ability to maintain our gas and electric distribution
systems and serve our customer base.

Environmental regulations can significantly affect the Company’s business.

The Company’s business operations are subject to federal, state, and local laws and regulations relating to environmental protection.
Costs of compliance and liabilities could negatively affect the Company’s results. In addition, compliance with environmental laws,
regulations, or permit conditions could require unexpected capital expenditures at the Company’s facilities. Because the costs of such
compliance could be significant, additional regulation could negatively affect the Company’s business. Climate change, and the
regulatory and legislative developments related to climate change, may adversely affect operations and financial results. If there were
to be any impacts from climate change to the Company’s operations and financial results, the Company expects that they would likely
occur over a long period of time and thus are difficult to quantify with any degree of specificity. Extreme weather events may result in
adverse physical effects on portions of the Company’s gas and electric infrastructure, which could disrupt the Company’s supply
chain, and ultimately its operations. Disruption of transportation and distribution system activities could result in reduced
operational efficiency and customer service interruption. Climate change and the laws, regulations, and other initiatives to address
it may impact the Company’s financial results. Federal, state, and local legislative and regulatory initiatives proposed or adopted in
recent years in an attempt to limit the effects of climate change, including greenhouse gas emissions, could have significant
impacts on the energy industry including government-imposed limitations, prohibitions, or moratoriums on the use of gas. A number
of states have adopted energy strategies or plans with goals that include the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions. New York
passed the Climate Leadership and Community Protection Act (“CLCPA”), which created emission reduction and electric
generation mandates, and could ultimately impact the Company’s customer base. Legislation or regulation that aims to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions could also include greenhouse gas emissions limits and reporting requirements, carbon taxes, restrictive
permitting, increased efficiency standards and incentives, mandates to conserve energy, or use renewable energy sources.
Additionally, the trend toward increased conservation, competition from renewable energy sources, and technological advances to
address climate change may reduce the demand for natural gas and electricity. For further discussion of the risks associated with
environmental regulation to address climate change, refer to Management’s Discussion and Analysis under the heading
“Environmental Matters”.

Significantly warmer than normal weather conditions may affect the sale of natural gas and significantly cooler than
normal weather could affect our electric sales. Either could adversely impact our financial position and the results of our
operations.

The demand for natural gas and electricity are directly affected by weather conditions. Significantly warmer than normal weather
conditions in the winter in our service areas could reduce our earnings and cash flows as a result of lower gas sales. Cooler summer
weather would result in lower electricity sales for air conditioning. Corning Gas mitigates the risk of warmer winter weather through
the weather normalization and revenue decoupling clauses in our tariffs. These clauses allow the Gas Company to surcharge
customers for under-recovery of revenue. Pike and Leatherstocking Gas do not have weather normalization or revenue decoupling to
mitigate the risk of warmer weather in the winter or cooler weather in the summer.

Information Technology

Cyber-attacks or acts of cyber-terrorism could disrupt our business operations and information technology systems or result in the
loss or exposure of confidential or sensitive customer, employee, or Company information. In FY 2020, the Company experienced
cyber-attacks that were intended to extract ransom payments. The attacks were resolved without paying a ransom and did not result
in the loss of data or an interruption of customer service. Since the attacks, the Company has taken steps to harden its defenses
against future attacks.

There are inherent risks associated with storing and transporting natural gas and distribution of electricity, which could cause
us to incur significant financial losses.

There are inherent hazards and operation risks in gas transportation and distribution activities, such as leaks, accidental explosions
and mechanical problems that could cause substantial financial losses. There are also risks associated with the distribution of
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electricity. These risks could, if they occur, result in the loss of h man life, significant damage to property, environmental pollution, of
impairment operations, and substantial losses. The location of pipelines, storage facilities, and electric distribution near
populated areas, including residential areas, commercial business centers, and industrial sites could increase the level of damages
resulting from these risks. These activities may subject us to litigation and administrative proceedings that could result in substantial
monetary judgments, fines, or penalties. To the extent that the occurrence of any of these events is not fully covered by insurance,
they could adversely affect our financial position and results of operations.

Changes in regional economic conditions could reduce the demand for natural gas and electricity.

The Gas Company’s business follows the economic cycle of the customers in our service regions: Corning, Bath, Virgil, Elmira, and
Hammondsport, New York. A falling, slow, or sluggish economy that would reduce the demand for natural gas in the areas in which
we are doing business by forcing temporary plant shutdowns, closing operations, or slow economic growth would reduce our earnings
potential. Pike and Leatherstocking Gas are less likely to be affected by a sluggish economy as they presently have no large industrial
customers.

Many of our commercial and industrial gas customers use natural gas in the production of their products. During economic
downturns, these customers may see a decrease in demand for their products, which in turn may lead to a decrease in the amount of
natural gas they require for production. During any economic slowdown, there is typically an increase in individual and corporate
customer bankruptcies. Pike and Leatherstocking Gas have limited industrial customers and are therefore less vulnerable to
economic conditions in their service territories. An increase in customer bankruptcies would increase our bad debt expenses and
reduce our cash flows.

Our earnings may decrease in the event of adverse regulatory actions.

Most of our operations are subject to the jurisdiction of the NYPSC or the PAPUC. The NYPSC and PAPUC approve the rates that
we may charge to our customers. If we are required in a rate proceeding to reduce the rates we charge our customers, or if we are
unable to obtain approval for rate relief, particularly when necessary to cover increased costs, including costs that may be incurred in
connection with mandated infrastructure improvements, our earnings would decrease.

Our success depends in large part upon the continued services of a number of significant employees, the loss of which
could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operation.

Our success depends in large part upon the continued services of our senior executives and other key employees. Although we have
entered into an employment agreement with Michael I. German, our president and chief executive officer, he can terminate his
agreement on ninety days’ notice. Other significant officers may terminate their employment at any time. The loss of the services of
any significant employee could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Concentration of share ownership among our largest shareholders may prevent other shareholders from influencing
significant corporate decisions.

The four largest holders of our common stock own approximately 52% of the outstanding common stock. As a result, if any chose to
act together, they would have the ability to exert substantial influence over all matters requiring approval by our shareholders,
including the election and removal of directors, any proposed merger, consolidation, or sale of all or substantially all of our assets and
other corporate transactions. This concentration of ownership could be disadvantageous to other shareholders with differing interests
from these shareholders.

Our cash flows from operations may not be sufficient to fund our capital expenditures.

Our cash flows from operations are largely dependent on allowed revenues subject to the approval of the NYPSC and PAPUC, and
may not be sufficient to meet all of our cash needs. The Company has pending rate cases before each of the commissions, the
outcomes of which are uncertain. We estimate capital expenditures in fiscal 2021 for the Gas Company, Pike, and Leatherstocking
Gas to be $5.5 million, $3.2 million, and $1.1 million, respectively. If cash flows from operations are not sufficient to fund these
capital expenditures, we will need to rely on new debt or equity financing which may be difficult to obtain.

We will require additional financing which may be difficult or costly to obtain.
In order to fund our capital expenditures, we will need to obtain additional debt and/or equity financing. The incurrence of debt
would result in increased debt service obligations and could result in operating and financing covenants that would restrict our

operations. Additional financing for the Gas Company requires NYPSC approval, and for Pike and Leatherstocking Gas requires
PAPUC approval. Additional financing may have unacceptable terms or may not be available at all for various reasons including:

*  Limits placed on us by our current lenders in our loan agreements,
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*  Our future results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows,
*  Our inability to meet our business plan,
*  Lenders’ or investors’ perception of, and demand for, securities of natural gas utilities, and

*  Conditions of the capital markets in which we may seek to raise funds.

If we cannot raise additional capital on acceptable terms, we may not be able to finance the expansion and mandated upgrading of our
distribution system, take advantage of future opportunities, respond to competitive pressures, or respond to unanticipated capital
requirements.

The Company’s profitability may be adversely affected by increased competition.

Corning Gas is in a geographical area with a number of interstate pipelines and local production sources. If a major customer decided
to connect directly to either an interstate pipeline or a local producer, our earnings and revenues would decrease. At Pike, electric
customers could construct solar facilities at their homes or businesses reducing electric demand.

The Companies face risks related to health epidemics and other outbreaks, including the COVID-19 pandemic.

The COVID-19 pandemic has impacted, and continues to impact, countries, communities, supply chains, and markets. As a result of
the COVID-19 pandemic, we may face an extended economic slowdown in our service territories that could have a material impact
on our liquidity, financial condition, and results of operations.

We will continue to monitor developments relating to the COVID-19 pandemic; however, we cannot predict the extent to which
COVID-19 may have a material impact on our business operations, liquidity, financial condition, and operational results. The extent
to which COVID-19 may impact these matters will depend on future developments that are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted,
including new information concerning the severity of COVID-19, the availability of an effective vaccine, actions that federal, state,
and local governmental or regulatory agencies may take in response to COVID-19, and other actions taken to contain it, or treat its
impact, among others.

ITEM 2 — PROPERTIES

Corning Gas and the Holding Company’s headquarters are located at 330 West William Street, Corning, New York. This structure is
physically connected to the operations center. Pike’s headquarters and operation center are in Milford, Pennsylvania. The
Leatherstocking Companies’ headquarters and operations center is in Montrose, Pennsylvania.

The Gas Company’s pipeline system is surveyed each year as required for compliance with federal and state regulations. Any
deficiencies found are corrected as mandated. Approximately 434 miles of distribution main, 15,000 services, and 86 regulating
stations, along with various other properties, are owned by the Gas Company. Pike owns approximately 160 miles of electric
distribution wire, poles, and services and 20 miles of gas distribution pipeline. The Leatherstocking Companies own four gate
stations and approximately 18 miles of pipe in Susquehanna and Bradford Counties, Pennsylvania. All of the property owned by the
Company is adequately insured and is subject to various liens typical of corporate debt.

ITEM 3 - LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company has lawsuits pending of the type incurred in the normal course of business and the Company believes that any
potential losses should be covered by insurance and will not have a material impact on the business.

ITEM 4 — MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.

PART II

ITEM 5 - MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The principal market on which the Holding Company’s common stock is traded is the OTCQX Best Marketplace, under the symbol
CNIG. Trading in the common stock is limited and sporadic. The following table sets forth the high and low closing sale prices as
reported on the OTCQX for the Holding Company’s common stock for each quarter within the Holding Company’s last two fiscal
years. Because the Holding Company’s stock is traded on the OTCQX, these quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail



markup, markdown, or commission and may not represent actual transactions. The number of beneficial shareholders of record
of the Holding Company’s common stock was 623 at September 30, 2020.

MARKET PRICE - (OTCQX)

Quarter Ended High Low
December 31, 2018 19.42 17.62
March 31, 2019 23.50 17.86
June 30, 2019 23.00 19.00
September 30, 2019 December 22.00 18.10
31,2019 22.50 18.05
March 31, 2020 21.50 13.06
June 30, 2020 17.69 14.00
September 30, 2020 17.69 15.25

COMMON STOCK, PREFERRED STOCK, AND DIVIDENDS

For FY 2020, there were a total of 25,487 shares of common stock issued for $177,675 of services, and 12,287 shares issued to
various investors under the dividend reinvestment program ("DRIP") for $201,940. There were 12,600 shares issued to directors,
and 600 shares sold to Leatherstocking Gas, which used the shares to compensate its independent director, Carl Hayden.

For FY 2019, there were a total of 25,209 shares of common stock issued for $239,481 of services, and 10,009 shares issued to
various investors under the DRIP for $186,446. There were 14,600 shares issued to officers and directors, and 600 shares
sold to Leatherstocking Gas, which used the shares to compensate Carl Hayden.

Dividends on shares of common stock are accrued when declared by the board of directors. Dividend on common shares were
declared and paid quarterly during the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019. For FY 2020 dividends declared totaled $0.603 per
common share. For the quarter ended September 30, 2020, $468,235 was accrued for dividends paid on October 15, 2020 to
stockholders of record on September 30, 2020. For FY 2019 dividends declared totaled $0.575 per common share. For the quarter
ended September 30, 2019, $441,494 was accrued for dividends paid on October 15, 2019 to stockholders of record on September 30,
2019.

Series A Cumulative Preferred Stock accrues cumulative dividends at a rate of 6.0% of the liquidation preference per share ($25.00)
and are expected to be paid on or about the 14th day of April, July, October and January of each year. For the quarter ended
September 30, 2020, $97,725 was accrued for dividends paid on October 15, 2020. Dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock are
reported as interest expense.

Series B Convertible Preferred Stock accrues cumulative dividends at a rate of 4.8% of the liquidation preference per share ($20.75)
and are expected to be paid on or about the 14th day of April, July, October and January of each year. For the quarter ended
September 30, 2020, $61,066 was accrued for dividends paid on October 15, 2020.

Series C Cumulative Preferred Stock accrues cumulative dividends at a rate of 6.0% of the liquidation preference per share ($25.00)
and are expected to be paid on or about the 14th day of April, July, October and January of each year and began July 15, 2020. For
the quarter ended September 30, 2020, $67,500 was accrued for dividends paid on October 15, 2020. Dividends on the Series C
Preferred Stock are reported as interest expense.

ITEM 7 - MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Overview

New York and Pennsylvania governmental authorities, in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, imposed restrictions on social
activities, closed schools and placed operating restrictions on commercial operations in our franchise areas beginning in March of
2020. Many businesses remain closed or had limited services or product offerings. As a result, numerous residential customers are
unemployed. The timing of a return to pre-pandemic conditions remains uncertain. The Company has already experienced loss of gas
and electric load and believes that it will experience lower revenues primarily from commercial customers on a go-forward basis. In
addition, with higher levels of unemployment, cash receipts will likely decrease and arrears and uncollectible accounts increase. The
Company has enacted plans to ensure safe and reliable operation of the gas and electric system, a safe work environment for its
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employees, and to maintain a high level of customer service. We have taken steps to delay capital expenditures and
operating expenses, and have petitioned the NYPSC for waivers from some mandated regulatory goals as appropriate.

On July 1, 2020, the Company completed the acquisition of its partner’s 50% interests in Leatherstocking Gas Company, LLC, and
Leatherstocking Pipeline Company, LLC. Immediately before the acquisition, on July 1, 2020, Leatherstocking Gas Company
distributed to its members franchises, engineering and gas pipeline assets located in New York having a book value of $0.532 million.
These assets were then contributed to the equity of Leatherstocking Gas Company of New York. The Company owns 50% of the
common shares of the newly formed Leatherstocking Gas Company of New York, Inc. and will account for this investment using the
equity method of accounting. The acquisition of the Company’s partner’s 50% interest in the Leatherstocking Companies fits the
Company’s goal of expanding its service offerings in northeast Pennsylvania. Total consideration paid for the acquisition of the
interests in the Leatherstocking Companies was $3.2 million, consisting of $1.95 million cash and 50,000 shares of the Company’s
6% Series A Cumulative Preferred Stock valued at $1.25 million. The consolidation of the Leatherstocking Companies’ results from
July 1, 2020 through September 30, 2020 did not have a significant impact on total revenues and expenses.

We believe our key performance indicators are net income, stockholders’ equity, and the safety and reliability of our systems.
Net income increased by $77,126 for FY 2020 compared to FY 2019. Because the Holding Company’s principal operations are
conducted through Corning Gas and Pike, both regulated utility companies, stockholders’ equity is an important performance
indicator. The NYPSC and PAPUC allow the Company the opportunity to earn a just and reasonable return on stockholders’ equity
as determined under applicable regulations. Stockholders’ equity is, therefore, a precursor of future earnings potential. As of
September 30, 2020, compared to September 30, 2019, stockholders’ equity increased from $34,417,705 to $35,933,515 We plan to
continue our focus on building stockholders’ equity. Safety and efficiency indicators include leak repair, main and service
replacements and customer service metrics.

For FY 2020, the rate increase at the Gas Company, alternative minimum tax credit refunds, and higher investment income, net of
operating cost increases, drove higher earnings. We continue to focus on improving the efficiency of our operations and making
capital investments to improve our infrastructure. Corning Gas’ infrastructure improvement program concentrates on the replacement
of older distribution mains and customer service lines. In FY 2020, the Gas Company repaired 184 leaks, replaced 8.6 miles of bare
steel main, and replaced 229 bare steel services. In FY 2019, the Gas Company repaired 187 leaks, replaced 9.5 miles of bare steel
main, and replaced 282 bare steel services. Pike replaced approximately 150 utility poles in FY 2020, 116 utility poles in FY 2019,
and did extensive tree trimming to maintain our electric infrastructure. On January 18, 2019, Pike filed a Long Term Infrastructure
Improvement Plan (“LTIIP”) to accelerate replacement of cast iron, wrought iron, and bare steel pipe over 11 years. The PAPUC
approved the LTIIP plan on June 13, 2019.

Key financial performance indicators:

Year Ended September 30,

2020 2019

Net income $3,201,358 $3,124,232
Stockholders' equity $35,933,515 $34,417,705
Stockholders' equity per outstanding share $11.70 $11.30

Gas Revenue and Margin

Gas retail operating revenues decreased $1,774,768 during FY 2020 compared to FY 2019. Sales volumes decreased by 271,749.5
Mcfin FY 2020 compared to FY 2019. This sales decrease had a negative revenue impact of $316,298. Gas costs declined $1.22 per
Mcf year over year. The lower gas costs decreased revenues by $2,448,173. However, this decrease was offset by a Corning Gas rate
increase, net of the pass back to customers for the federal income tax benefit related to the 2017 Tax Act amounting to
$989,703. Purchased gas costs are subject to a NYPSC approved reconciliation that permits recovery of all prudently incurred costs.
Therefore, the lower gas cost revenues does not impact net income.

Other gas revenues decreased $140,209 during FY 2020 compared to FY 2019. The components of this decrease are detailed in the
tables below:

Retail gas revenue: September 30, 2020 September 30, 2019
Residential $15,814,929 $16,728,152
Commercial 2,420,930 2,807,725
Transportation 4,407,991 4,378,121
Wholesale 1,731,433 2,236,053
Total retail gas revenue 24,375,283 26,150,051
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Other gas revenue:

Local production $694,237 $698,203
Customer discounts forfeited 40,288 117,051
Reconnect fees 1,374 4,098
Surcharges 3,480 1,521
All other 270,556 329,271
Total other gas revenue 1,009,935 1,150,144
Total gas operating revenue $25,385,218 $27,300,195

The following tables further summarize all other income in the other gas revenue table above:

September 30, 2020 September 30, 2019

Other gas & electric revenues:
2017 Tax Act FIT reconciliation $492.641 $588,120
RDM amortizations net (278,600) (251,653)
Contract customer reconciliation (80,928) (148,718)
Regulatory liability reserve - (74,147)
Local production revenues 61,305 59,066
Capacity release revenues 41,187 33,733
Customer performance incentive 32,000 32,000
Delivery rate adjustment carrying costs 6,038 7,351
All Other (3.087) 83,519
$270,556 $329,271

Gas purchases are our largest expenses. Purchased gas expense decreased $2,241,491 for FY 2020 compared to FY 2019. The
decrease in costs is due primarily to a decrease in the price of natural gas.

We anticipate that the cost of gas should remain relatively stable because of our access to local production and current economic and
government projections. The cost of electricity should also remain relatively stable because electricity prices generally follow the
prices of natural gas.

Gas Margin (the excess of utility gas revenues over the cost of natural gas purchased) was up $326,514 or approximately 1.67%.
Whereas gas revenues were down 7.01%, which resulted in an increase in margin percentage of 6.69% for FY 2020 compared to FY
2019. The gas margin percentages were negatively impacted by the federal income tax credit of $1,405,983 mandated by the
NYPSC offset by lower purchased gas costs, and by Corning Gas’ rate increase. The Leatherstocking acquisition had minimal impact
on gas margin in FY 2020. Although the federal income tax credit refund to customers mandated by the NYPSC negatively
impacted margin, its impact on earnings was mitigated by the decrease in the federal income tax rate.

Gas Margin: September 30, 2020 September 30, 2019
Utility Gas Revenues $25,385,218 $27,300,195
Natural Gas Purchased 5,501,237 7.742,728
Gas Margin $19,883,981 $19,557,467
Gas Margin Percentage 78.33% 71.64%

Electric Revenue and Margin

Utility electric retail operating revenues decreased $1,256,333 during FY 2020 compared to FY 2019. This decrease was mainly
attributable to decreased purchased power costs of $1,339,633 offset by increased customer usage of $83,300. The purchased
electricity costs declined by $0.0256 per Kilowatt hour when compared to FY 2019. Purchased electricity costs are subject to a
PAPUC approved reconciliation that permits recovery of all prudently incurred costs. Accordingly, lower purchased electricity costs
do not impact net income.

Other electric revenues increased $17,216 during FY 2020 compared to FY 2019. The components of this increase are detailed in
the tables below:

Retail electric revenue: September 30, 2020 September 30, 2019
Residential $3,449,851 $3,882,291
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Commercial $3,288,582 $4,108,681

Street lights 123,055 126,849
Total retail electric revenue 6,861,488 8,117,821

Other electric revenue:

Customer discounts forfeited 2,658 62,078
FIT sur-credit reconciliation - (38,707)
Third party billings 176,645 111,706
All other (40,124) (13,114)
Total other electric revenues 139,179 121,963
Total electric operating revenues $7,000,667 $8,239,784

Electricity costs decreased by $1,197,593 for FY 2020 compared to FY 2019. The decrease in costs for FY 2020 is due primarily to
a decrease in the price of purchased electricity.

Electric margin (the excess of electric revenues over the cost) was down $41,524 for FY 2020 compared to FY 2019. Electric margin
percentage increased 11.08% for FY 2020 compared to FY 2019. The electric margin was negatively impacted by the federal income
tax credit of $1,353 mandated by the PAPUC, lower purchased power costs, and lower sales. Although the federal income tax credit
refund to customers mandated by the PAPUC negatively impacted margin, its impact on earnings was mitigated by the decrease in the
federal income tax rate.

September 30, 2020 September 30, 2019

Utility Electric Revenues $7,000,667 $8,239,784
Electricity Purchased 1,609,314 2,806,907
Margin $5,391,353 $5,432,877
77.01% 65.93%

Operating and Interest Expenses

Operating and maintenance expense for FY 2020 increased by $308,533 compared to FY 2019. The increase in expenses was
due primarily to increases in wages of $144,303, additional underground maintenance costs of $91,754, and COVID-19 impact of
$96,441.

Taxes other than income taxes increased $26,659 for FY 2020 compared to FY 2019. This increase was due to an increase in property
taxes of $175,581, offset by a decrease in Gross Receipts Tax (“GRT”) of $127,307, and an increase in payroll taxes of
$21,615 capitalized.

Depreciation expense for FY 2020 compared to FY 2019 increased by $121,827 due to increased depreciable utility plant
placed in service.

Interest expense for FY 2020 compared to FY 2019 increased by $241,422 mainly due to additional interest costs
associated with higher levels of outstanding debt attributed to capital expenditures and to the Leatherstocking acquisition.

Effective Tax Rate

There was an effective income tax rate of 23.1% for FY 2020 and 29.7% for FY 2019. The decrease in the effective tax rate was
impacted by an AMT credit refund received in FY 2020, see Note 11 “Income Taxes” in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Internally generated cash from operating activities consists of net income, adjusted for non-cash expenses and changes in operating
assets and liabilities. Non-cash items include depreciation and amortization, gain or loss on sale of securities and deferred income
taxes. Over or under recovered gas costs could significantly impact cash flow. In addition, there are significant year-to-year changes
in regulatory assets that impact cash flow. Cash flows used in investing activities typically consist primarily of capital expenditures
and investments in our joint ventures. For FY 2020, the acquisition of our partner’s 50% interests in the Leatherstocking Companies
added approximately $1.9 million to cash used in investing activities. We estimate capital expenditures to upgrade our distribution
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approximately  $9.7 million in fiscal 2021. We expect to finance these planned capital expenditures
with a combination cash provided by operations and issuance of additional long-term debt and equity.

The earnings sharing mechanism approved by the NYPSC in the June 2017 order provided for sharing between Corning Gas
stockholders and customers of the earned return on equity (ROE) above certain levels. Under the earnings sharing mechanism,
Corning Gas is allowed to retain all earnings up to and including a 9.5% ROE level, 50% of earnings above 9.5% up to and including
10%, 25% of earnings above 10% up to and including 10.5%, and 10.0% of earnings above 10.5%. We believe that these limits do
not have a significant effect on our liquidity because even at those limits, we have sufficient cash collected from our earnings to
support operations.

Cash flows from financing activities consist of dividends paid, repayment of long-term debt, net proceeds
from new debt, netproceeds from sales of preferred shares, and changes in the outstanding balances of our lines-of-credit.

On  September 30, 2020, we had approximately $50.6 million in long-term debt outstanding.
We made principal payments on outstanding debt during FY 2020 consistent with the requirements of our debt instruments
and refinancing activities.

In November 2017, the Gas Company refinanced the bulk of its long term debt by entering into a long-term debt agreement with
M&T Bank for $29 million at a fixed interest rate of 4.16% with a ten-year maturity. In May 2018, Pike refinanced its outstanding
loan with M&T, who issued an $11.2 million term note with a fixed interest rate of 4.92% and a ten-year maturity. Since then, the
Company has relied on multiple-disbursement notes from M&T to fund capital improvements on an annual basis.

During FY 2020, the Company issued 180,000 shares of newly authorized 6% Series C Cumulative Preferred Stock at $25.00 per
share, for gross proceeds of $4,500,000. The proceeds of this issuance ($1,950,000) were used to buy the previously unowned
interests in the Leatherstocking Companies and to finance capital improvement projects at Pike and Corning. On July 1, 2020, 50,000
shares of the Company’s 6% Series A Cumulative Preferred Stock valued at $1,250,000 were also issued to fund the Company’s
acquisition of the previously unowned interests in the Leatherstocking Companies. If necessary to raise funds, the Company may
issue additional authorized preferred shares or newly created preferred stock.

Corning Gas, Pike, and Leatherstocking Gas have revolving lines of credit of $8.0 million, $2.0 million, and $1.5 million,
respectively. The Company primarily utilizes these lines of credit to purchase gas and electricity. The Company believes these lines
of credit are sufficient to fund our short-term purchasing needs.

The Gas Company is responsible for managing its gas supply assets. At September 30, 2020, the Gas Company had 573,609 Dth at a
cost of $995,341 in storage. We anticipate that the Gas Company will have sufficient gas to supply our customers for the 2020-2021
winter heating season. The contract with Orange & Rockland (O&R) should provide for sufficient electricity and natural gas
to supply Pike for the 2020-2021 winter heating and summer cooling demand. M&T has issued a letter of credit to O&R in the
amount of $1,525,000 as security for the obligations of Pike under Pike’s electric and gas supply, and gas transportation agreement.
The agreements provide for three years of electric and gas supply for the customers of Pike, with up to three, one-year
extensions. Leatherstocking Gas purchases its gas from Cabot Oil on an as-needed basis and therefore has no gas in storage. We
anticipate that Leatherstocking will have sufficient gas to supply its customers for the 2020-2021 winter heating season.

As of September 30, 2020, we believe that cash flow from operating activities and borrowings under our lines of credit will be
sufficient to satisfy debt service requirements over the next twelve months. We believe new debt and proceeds from equity will be
required to satisfy our capital expenditures to finance our internal growth needs for the next twelve months.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off balance sheet arrangements.

Contractual Obligations

The following tables summarize the Gas Company’s expected future contractual cash obligations as of September
30, 2020, and the twelve-month periods over which they occur.

The aggregate maturities of long-term debt for each of the five years subsequent to September 30, 2020 are as follows:

2021 $6,271,068
2022 $6,178,252
2023 $5,687,656
2024 $6,007,762
2025 $6,210,093
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The estimated interest payments on the above debts are as follows:

2021 $1,956,692
2022 $1,699,657
2023 $1,443,590
2024 $1,180,852
2025 $845,593

The estimated pension plan benefit payments are as follows:

2021 $1,513,952
2022 $1,508,365
2023 $1,518,476
2024 $1,552,685
2025 $1,614,898

The projected benefit obligation of the benefit plan has been calculated based on the census and plan provisions, as well as a number of
economic and demographic assumptions. The discount rate for the period ending September 30, 2020 is 3.64% and is assumed to be
the rate going forward. A decrease in the discount rate of 1% could increase the projected benefit obligation by $4.2 million and
an increase in the discount rate of 1% could decrease the obligation by $3.4 million. Either change would impact the estimated
pension plan payment for future periods.

Regulatory Matters

Holding Company

The Holding Company’s primary business, through its subsidiaries Corning Gas, Pike, and Leatherstocking Gas, is regulated by the
NYPSC and PAPUC, among other agencies.

Gas Company

On April 13, 2016, the Gas Company filed a petition in Case 16-G-0204 with the NYPSC, to defer leak repair and survey costs over
and above the amounts permitted to be recovered in rates for 2015. In this petition, we requested that the incremental cost of $349,547
together with the associated income tax effect, be deferred and recovered in a manner to be established in future rate proceedings. The
Company recognized this deferral in the quarter ended March 31, 2016. The petition is still pending before the NYSPSC.

On June 15, 2017, the NYPSC issued an Order Adopting Terms of Joint Proposal and Establishing Gas Rate Plan (the “June 2017
Order”) adopting the Joint Proposal without substantive modification in Case 16-G-0369.

The Joint Proposal (“JP””) in Case 16-G-0369 included the levilization of the revenue requirement over a three year period. Levilization
allowed a recovery of the rate increase equally over three rate years. Rate year 3 delivery base rates, if left unchanged, would permit
the Gas Company to earn revenues in excess of the amount granted by the Commission. Accordingly, the JP provided that if the
Gas Company did not file for new rates to become effective at the end of Rate Year 3, it would reduce rates beginning on June 1, 2020
to eliminate the amount of over recovery caused by levilization. The Gas Company made the tariff compliance filing to reduce rates on
June 1, 2020. The Gas Company estimates that delivery rates will be reduced by approximately $481,000 net of tax until new
rates become effective.

On August 9, 2018, The NYSPSC issued an order in Case 17-M-0815 that required Corning to return to customers the difference
between the federal income tax allowance in base rates and the new statutory rate of 21% under the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 (the
“Tax Act”). The refund to customers began on October 1, 2018. The customers experienced a decrease of 3.87% on their overall bill in
the year starting October 1, 2018, and experienced a decrease of 3.72% on their overall bill in the year starting October 1, 2019. The
amount estimated to be returned to customers was $980,964 during FY 2019, and was $1,004,563 during FY 2020. These refunds will
not impact the Gas Company’s allowed earnings. The impact of the change in the Tax Act on deferred regulatory balances will
be deferred until the Gas Company’s next base rate case. The Gas Company has recorded those amounts as Regulatory Liabilities on
the consolidated balance sheets.

On February 27, 2020, Corning Gas filed with the NYPSC for increases in revenues of $6,255,926, $845,142, and $680,913 for the
years ending January 31, 2022, 2023, and 2024, respectively (Case 20-G-0101). These standalone rate year increases would impact
customer bills by 23.4%, 2.56%, and 2.01%, respectively. The base period (test year) for this filing is the 12 month period ended
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September 30, 2019. The levelized amount would be $3,523,167 in each of the years ending January 31, 2022, 2023, and 2024.
The levelized increases would impact customer bills by 10.93% per year. We are requesting a levelized approach.

The filing with the NYPSC reflects a return on equity of 10.2% and pro-forma equity ratios of 50.67%, 52.95%, and 55.26% for the
12-month periods ending January 31, 2022, 2023, and 2024, respectively. Primary reasons for the rate increase are NYPSC mandated
initiatives, including replacement of distribution pipe; new safety, training, and cyber security requirements; and shorter depreciation
lives for gas pipeline infrastructure to reflect recent state decarbonization legislation. These items comprise approximately 50% of
the rate case increase request. The balance of the request is to recover increases in health insurance, wages, and other inflationary
costs.

On June 26, 2020, the New York Department of Public Service staff (“Staff”) filed its direct testimony in Case 20-G-0101. Staff
recommends a one year revenue requirement of $517,063, compared to the Gas Company’s request of $6,223,603. The primary
differences between Staff and Gas Company’s revenue requirements is Staff’s equity return recommendation of 8.45% vs. 10.20%,
disallowance of the Company’s request for shorter depreciation lives, difference in health insurance cost escalators, extension of the
recovery period of regulatory costs from three years to five years, and disallowance of leak repair amortization. The Gas Company
disagrees with Staff’s proposals. The Gas Company is currently in confidential settlement discussion with Staff and active parties in
Case 20-G-0101. The results of those discussions cannot be determined at this time. In November of 2020, the parties requested that
the Administrative Law Judges grant a four month extension of time until June 1, 2021 to rule on the filing, with new rates being
retroactively enacted as of January 31, 2020.

By petition dated September 3, 2020 in Case 20-G-0442, Corning Gas requested authority under Public Service Law Sec.69 to issue
approximately $29.5 million of long-term debt through December 31, 2024. The proceeds are to be used principally to fund
Commission mandated system safety and reliability measures, including replacement of older pipe and regulator stations; and
purchase equipment, computer software, and other supplies as necessary to maintain the distribution system. The petition is currently
pending.

Pike

The PAPUC issued an order in Case M-2018-2641242 that requires Pike to return to customers the difference between the federal
income tax allowance in base rates and the new statutory rate of 21%. Pike’s electric customers received a refund of $73,923 or a
decrease of 0.67% on their overall bill effective October 1, 2018. No refunds were ordered for Pike’s gas operation because amounts
were not material. The impact of the change in the Tax Act on deferred regulatory balances will be deferred until Pike’s next base rate
case. Pike has recorded those amounts as regulatory liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets.

On October 24, 2020, Pike filed separate rate cases with the PAPUC for an increase in revenues for its electric services in the amount
of $1,933,600 (Case R-2020-302235) and for an increase in revenues for its gas services in the amount of $262,200 (Case
R-2020-3022134). Pike’s current rates have been in effect since 2014. The rate increase would impact residential electric customer
bills by 17.3%, and by 19.7% for gas customers. The base period (test year) for this filing is the 12 month period ended June 30,
2020. The filings with the PAPUC reflect returns on equity of 9.75% and pro forma equity ratios of 48.3% for each case. The primary
reasons for the requested rate increases are PAPUC mandated initiatives including the replacement of gas distribution equipment,
replacement of electric poles and wires, the recovery of deferred storm related costs, new safety, training, and cyber security
requirements, and increased employee health and welfare benefits costs. The PAPUC can grant all, some, or none of the requested
revenue increases. Pike expects its new rates to take effect on July 1, 2021.

Leatherstocking Gas

The PAPUC issued an order in Case M-2018-2641242 that requires Leatherstocking Gas to return to customers the difference
between the federal income tax allowance in base rates and the new statuary rate of 21%. No refunds were ordered for
Leatherstocking Gas operations however, since the Company has experienced federal income tax losses since 2012.

Environmental Matters

The Company is subject to various federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to the protection of the environment. The
effect (material or not) on the Company of any new legislative or regulatory measures will depend on the particular provisions that
are ultimately adopted. Environmental regulation legislative and regulatory measures to address climate change and greenhouse gas
emissions are in various phases of discussion or implementation. Legislation or regulation that aims to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions could also include greenhouse gas emissions limits and reporting requirements, carbon taxes, restrictive permitting,
increased efficiency standards, and incentives or mandates to conserve energy or use renewable energy sources. Federal, state or local
governments may provide tax advantages and other subsidies to support alternative energy sources, mandate the use of specific fuels
or technologies, or promote research into new technologies to reduce the cost and increase the scalability of alternative energy
sources. New York State, for example, passed the CLCPA that mlagldates reduced greenhouse gas emissions to 40% of 1990 levels by
2030, and



85% of 1990 levels by 2050, with the remaining emission reduction achieved by controlled offsets. The CLCPA also requires electric
generators to meet 70% of demand with renewable energy by 2030. These climate change and greenhouse gas initiatives could impact
the Company's customer base and assets depending on regulatory treatment afforded in the process. The initiatives could also increase
the Company’s cost of environmental compliance by increasing reporting requirements and requiring the Company to replace all leak
prone pipe. They could also delay or otherwise negatively affect efforts to obtain permits and other regulatory approvals with regard to
existing and new facilities and impose additional monitoring and reporting requirements. Changing market conditions and new
regulatory requirements, as well as unanticipated or inconsistent application of existing laws and regulations by administrative
agencies, make it difficult to predict a long-term business impact across twenty or more years.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our significant accounting policies are described in the notes to the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-
K. The application of generally accepted accounting principles involves certain assumptions, judgements, and estimates that
affect reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses. Thus, the application of these principles can result in varying
results from company to company. The principles and policies that most significantly impact us are discussed below.

Accounting for Utility Revenue and Cost of Gas Recognition

Corning Gas records revenues from residential and commercial customers based on meters read on a cycle basis throughout each

month, while certain large industrial and utility customers’ meters are read at the end of each month. Corning Gas does not accrue

revenue for gas delivered but not yet billed, as the NYPSC requires that such accounting be adopted during a rate proceeding, which

we have not done. Currently, Corning Gas does not anticipate adopting unbilled revenue recognition, nor does it believe it would have

a material impact on financial results. Our tariffs contain mechanisms that provide for the recovery of the cost of gas applicable to

firm customers, which includes estimates. Under these mechanisms, we periodically adjust rates to reflect increases and decreases in
the cost of gas and electricity. Annually, we reconcile the difference between the total gas costs collected from customers and the cost
of gas. We defer any excess or deficiency and subsequently either recover it from, or refund it to, customers over the following
twelve-month period or longer if the cost for gas significantly exceeds the total gas costs collected from customers. The default
service charges for electricity are adjusted every quarter by reconciling the difference between electric costs collected from customers
and the cost of electricity. To the extent estimates are inaccurate, a regulatory asset on the balance sheet is increased or decreased.
Pike and Leatherstocking Gas read all meters at the end of the month and therefore have no unbilled revenue. As gas and electricity are
immediately available for use upon delivery to the customer, the gas or electricity and its delivery are identifiable as a single
performance obligation. This performance obligation is satisfied over time as the Company delivers, and its customers
simultaneously receive and consume the gas or electricity, thus allowing the company to recognize revenue.

Accounting for Regulated Operations - Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

Corning Gas is subject to regulation by NYPSC, and Pike and Leatherstocking are subject to regulation by the PAPUC. We record the
results of our regulated activities in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) ASC No. 980, which results in
differences in the application of generally accepted accounting principles between regulated and non-regulated businesses. ASC No.
980 requires the recording of regulatory assets and liabilities for certain transactions that would have been treated as revenue and
expense in non-regulated businesses. In certain circumstances, FASB ASC No. 980 allows entities whose rates are determined by
third-party regulators to defer costs as "regulatory” assets in the balance sheet to the extent that the entity expects to recover these
costs in future rates. Management believes that currently available facts support the continued application of ASC No. 980 and that all
regulatory assets and liabilities are recoverable or refundable through the regulatory environment.

Accounting for Income Taxes

The Holding Company uses the asset and liability method to establish deferred tax assets and liabilities for the temporary differences
between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of the Holding Company’s assets and liabilities at enacted tax rates expected to
be in effect when such amounts are realized or settled. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities will be adjusted for the effects of
enacted changes in tax laws and rates.

Accounting for Joint Ventures

Investments in joint ventures have been recognized in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting
based on the guidelines established in FASB ASC 323. In applying this guidance, the Holding Company recognizes investments in
joint ventures as assets at cost. Investments fluctuate in future periods based on the Holding Company’s allocable share of earnings or

losses from the joint ventures which are recognized through earnings.

Pension and Post-Retirement Benefits
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The amounts reported in our consolidated financial statements related to pension and other post-retirement benefits are determined on
an actuarial basis, which requires the use of many assumptions in the calculation of such amounts. These assumptions include the
discount rate, the expected return on plan assets, the rate of compensation increase, and, for other post-retirement benefits, the
expected annual rate of increase in per capita cost of covered medical and prescription benefits. Changes in actuarial assumptions and
actuarial experience could have a material impact on the amount of our pension and post-retirement benefit costs and funding
requirements. In FY 2020, the mortality assumption was revised to the sex-distinct Amount-Weighted Pri-2012 Mortality Tables for
employees, healthy annuitants, and contingent survivors with mortality improvements projected using Scale MP-2019 on a
generational basis. The decrease in discount rate from 3.96% to 3.64% as of September 2020 increased the benefit obligation. The net
effect of changes to the assumptions and discount rate is an increase of approximately $1.6 million to the pension benefit obligation.
However, we expect to recover substantially all our net periodic pension and other post-retirement benefit costs attributed to
employees in accordance with NYPSC authorization. For financial reporting purposes, the difference between the amounts of such
costs as determined under applicable accounting principles is recorded as either a regulatory asset or liability.

Preferred Stock and Temporary Equity

The Holding Company classifies conditionally redeemable convertible preferred shares, which includes preferred shares subject to
redemption upon the occurrence of uncertain events not solely within control of the Holding Company, as temporary equity in the
mezzanine section of the consolidated balance sheets, in accordance with the guidance enumerated in ASC No. 480 "Distinguishing
Liabilities from Equity." The Company also analyzes the embedded conversion feature for bifurcation, based on whether the host
instrument has more equity-like or debt-like characteristics. Dividends are recorded as a reduction to retained earnings, while
issuance costs reduce the initial proceeds and are then accreted over the life of the instrument to the redemption amount.

The Holding Company records mandatorily redeemable stock as a liability in accordance with FASB ASC No. 480. Dividends
are recorded as interest expense, while issuance costs are treated the same way as debt issuance costs.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains statements which, to the extent they are not recitations of historical facts, constitute "forward-looking statements"
within the meaning of the Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (“Reform Act”). The words "estimate," "project,”" "anticipate,"
"expect," "intend," "believe," "could," and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. All such forward-
looking statements are intended to be subject to the safe harbor protection provided by the Reform Act. Although we believe that the
expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, we can give no assurance that our
expectations will be achieved. As forward-looking statements, these statements involve risks, uncertainties, and other factors that
could cause actual results to differ materially from the expected results. Accordingly, actual results may differ materially from those
expressed in any forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause results to differ materially from our management's expectations
include, but are not limited to, those listed under Item 1A - "Risk Factors" of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2020, in addition to:

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic,

The effect of an interruption in our supply of natural gas or electricity or a substantial increase in the price of

natural gas or electricity,

Our ability to successfully negotiate new supply agreements for natural gas as they expire, on terms favorable to us, or at all,
The effect on our operations of any action by the NYPSC or PAPUC,

The effect of litigation,

The effect on our operations of unexpected changes in other applicable legal or regulatory requirements,

The amount of natural gas produced and directed through our pipeline by producers,

Our ability to obtain additional equity or debt financing to fund our capital expenditure plans and for general corporate purposes,
Our successful completion of various capital projects

The use of pipeline, compressor stations, and storage by customers and counterparties at levels consistent with our expectations,
Our ability to retain the services of our senior executives and other key employees,

Our vulnerability to adverse general economic and industry conditions and particularly the effect of those conditions on our
major customers,

The effect of events in our transportation and delivery facilities, and

Competition to our gas supply and transportation business from other pipelines.

* O ¥ X X X ¥ X ¥ ¥ * %

*

Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made, and we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking
statement in light of new information or future events.

ITEM 8 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
The following financial statements are filed with this Form 10-K:
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Report of Freed Maxick CPAs, P.C., Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Financial Statements:
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2020 and 2019
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of September 30, 2020, the Company’s management, with the participation of the Company’s chief executive officer and chief
financial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as
defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Based upon the Company’s evaluation, the
Company’s chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are
effective as of September 30, 2020.

Management’s Report on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

The management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls over financial reporting
as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). The Company’s internal controls over financial reporting are
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Our internal controls over financial reporting are supported by appropriate reviews by management, written
policies and guidelines, careful selection and training of qualified personnel, and a written code of conduct adopted by our board of
directors, applicable to all directors, officers, and employees of our Company.

The audit committee of our Company’s board of directors meets with the independent public accountants and management
periodically to discuss internal controls over financial reporting, auditing, and financial reporting matters. The audit committee
reviews with the independent public accountants the scope and results of the audit effort. The audit committee’s report will be
reported in the proxy statement issued in connection with the Company’s 2021 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

The Company’s management, including the Company’s chief executive officer and chief financial officer, assessed the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting as of September 30, 2020. In making this assessment, management used
the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework from 2013. Based upon that evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that our internal
controls over financial reporting were effective as of September 30, 2020.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation required by
paragraph (d) of Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 or 15d-15 that was conducted during the last fiscal quarter for the Company that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by item 10 is incorporated herein by reference to the registrant’s definitive proxy statement relating to its
2021 Annual Meeting of Shareholders under the captions "Board of Directors," "Executive Officers,"” "Section 16(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance," and "Code of Business Conduct and Ethics," or an amendment to this annual report in form
10 K/A. The proxy statement, or an amendment to this annual report on form 10 K/A containing the required information, will be
filed with the SEC prior to January 28, 2021.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by item 11 will be contained under the caption "Executive Compensation” in the proxy statement and
incorporated herein by reference or an amendment to this annual report on form 10 K/A which will be filed with the SEC prior to
January 28, 2021.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required with respect to security ownership of certain beneficial owners will be set forth under the caption "Principal
Stockholders" and "Equity Compensation Plan Information at September 30, 2020" in the proxy statement and incorporated herein by
reference, or an amendment to this annual report on form 10 K/A which will be filed with the SEC prior to January 28, 2021.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by item 13 will be contained under the caption "Certain Relationships and Related Transactions" and
"Director Independence” in the proxy statement and incorporated herein by reference or an amendment to this annual report on
form 10 K/A which will be filed with the SEC prior to January 28, 2021.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by item 14 will be contained under the caption "Audit Committee Report - Principal Accounting Fees and
Services" in the proxy statement and incorporated herein by reference or an amendment to this annual report on form 10 K/A
which will be filed with the SEC prior to January 28, 2021.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Financial Statement Schedules (see Item 8 Financial Statements and Supplementary Data)

(b) Exhibits

Exhibits incorporated by reference for filings made before January 1, 1995 may be found in the Company's Commission File 0-643

Exhibit
No.

3.1

32

3.7

3.8

4.4%

10.1*

10.2*

10.3*

10. 4

10.14*

10.16

10.21*

10.22*

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.37

10.38
10.48

Description

The Holding Company’s Certificate of Incorporation (included as Exhibit B to the Proxy Statement/Prospectus
forming portion of the Form S-4)

Second Amended and Restated By-laws of Corning Natural Gas Holding Corporation, effective February 6, 2018
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 6, 2018)
Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation with respect to the number of shares of common
stock and preferred stock filed with the Department of State of the State of New York on May I,
2018 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 1, 2018)
Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of Corning Natural Gas Holding
Corporation authorizing 261,500 Shares of 6% Series A Cumulative Preferred Stock Filed with the Department
of State of the State of New York on June 29, 2020 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company’s
Current Report on

Form 8-K dated June 29, 2020)

Corning Natural Gas Holding Corporation 2018 Employee Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference
to Appendix 1 of the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 22, 2018)

Employment Agreement dated November 30, 2006 between Michael German and the Company (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 30, 2006)

Amended and Restated Severance Agreement effective August 18, 2006 between the Company and Kenneth J.
Robinson (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated August
14, 2006)

First Amendment to Employment Agreement between Michael 1. German and the Company dated December 31,
2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 10-Q dated August 12,
2009)

Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Current
Report on Form 10-Q dated August 12, 2009)

Settlement and Release Agreement between the Company and Thomas K. Barry dated December 30,

2011 [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 of the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1

(No. 333-182386), originally filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 28, 2012]

Operating Agreement of the Leatherstocking Gas Company, LLC [incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32 of
the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-182386), originally filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission on June 28, 2012]

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement — Officers under the Corning Natural Gas Corporation’s Amended and
Restated 2007 Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-
K dated December 11, 2012)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement - Non-employee Directors under the Corning Natural Gas Corporation’s
Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated December 11, 2012)

Stock Purchase Agreement between the Holding Company and Article 6 Marital Trust under the First Amended
and Restated Jerry Zucker Revocable Trust Dated April 2, 2007, dated April 7, 2014

Stock Purchase Agreement between the Holding Company and the Retirement Plan for the L.S. Starret Company
with QCI Management, Inc., as Registered Investment Advisor dated April 14, 2014

Stock Purchase Agreement between the Holding Company and DBH, LLC with QCI Asset Management, Inc., as
Registered Investment Advisor dated April 14,2014

Stock Purchase Agreement between the Holding Company and Cold Spring Construction Profit Sharing Plan with
QCI Asset Management, Inc., as Registered Investment Advisor dated April 14, 2014

Stock Purchase Agreement between the Holding Company and Timothy E. Delaney with QCI Asset Management,
Inc., as Registered Investment Advisor dated April 14, 2014

Stock Purchase Agreement between the Holding Company and Robert B. Johnston dated April 16, 2014

Pledge and Security Agreement between Corning Natural Gas Holding Corporation and Mirabito Regulated
Industries, LLC with Wayne Bank dated January 31, 2019 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 on form 8-K
dated September 4, 2014)
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10.49

10.72

10.73

10.74

10.79
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10.89

10.90

10.91
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Pledge and Security Agreement between Corning Natural Gas Holding Corporation and Mirabito Regulated
Industries, LLC with Wayne Bank dated January 31, 2019 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 on form 8-K
September 4, 2014)
Loan Agreement between Leatherstocking Gas (Borrower) and Leatherstocking Pipeline (Guarantor) and Five Star
Bank, dated July 11, 2016 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the June 2016 10-Q)
General Security Agreement between Leatherstocking Gas and Five Star Bank dated July 11, 2016 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the June 2016 10-Q)
General Security Agreement between Leatherstocking Pipeline and Five Star Bank dated July 11, 2016
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the June 2016 10-Q)
Continuing Guaranty, dated August 31, 2016, from Corning Natural Gas Holding Corporation to M&T Bank with
respect to the obligations of Pike County Light & Power Company to M&T Bank (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 on the September 2016 8-K)
Credit Agreement, dated August 31, 2020, between Corning Natural Gas Company and M&T Bank (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 31, 2020)
Multiple Disbursement Term Note, dated August 15, 2018, from Corning Natural Gas Corporation to M&T Bank
in the maximum principal amount of $3,600,000 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 31, 2020)
General Security Agreement, dated August 31, 2020, from Corning Natural Gas Corporation to M&T Bank
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 31, 2020)
Replacement Credit Agreement, dated June 27, 2019, between Pike Light & Power Company and M&T Bank
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 23, 2018)
Replacement Term Note, dated May 23, 2018, from Pike Light & Power Company to M&T Bank in the initial
principal amount of $11,200,000 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated May 23, 2018)
Continuing Guaranty, dated June 27, 2019, between Pike Light & Power Company and M&T Bank (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 23, 2018)
General Security Agreement, dated June 27, 2019, between Pike Light & Power Company and M&T Bank
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 23, 2018)
Multiple Disbursement Term Note, dated June 27, 2019, from Corning Natural Gas Corporation to M&T Bank in
the maximum principal amount of $3,127,000, with Prepayment Premium Rider. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 on the December, 31 2019 10-Q)
Multiple Disbursement Term Note, dated June 27, 2019 from Pike Light & Power Company to M&T Bank in the
maximum principal amount of $2,072,000, with Prepayment Premium Rider. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 on the December, 31 2019 10-Q)
Form of Series C Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement dated March 27, 2020 between Corning Natural Gas
Holding Corporation and the Series C Preferred Stock Purchasers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 on the
March, 31 2020 10-Q)
Term Note under the U.S. Small Business Administration Paycheck Protection Program issued by Corning Natural
Gas Holding Corporation on April 17, 2020 to M&T Bank in the principal amount of $970,900 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 on the March, 31 2020 10-Q)
Term Note under the U.S. Small Business Administration Paycheck Protection Program issued by Pike County
Light & Power Company on April 22, 2020 to M&T Bank in the principal amount of $137,200 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 on the March, 31 2020 10-Q)
Subsidiary of Company
Consent of Freed Maxick CPA's, P.C.
Power of Attorney
Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act - Michael I. German
Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act - Charles A. Lenns
Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
The following materials from the Corning Natural Gas Corporation Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ended September 30, 2020, formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language):
(i) the Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 30, 2020 and 2019
(i1) the Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019
(iii) the Comprehensive Income Statements for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019
(iv) the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended September 30,

2020 and 2019
(v) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019
(vi) related notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement
Filed herewith
Furnished herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CORNING NATURAL GAS HOLDING CORPORATION

Date: December 21, 2020 /s/ Michael I. German
Michael 1. German
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Date: December 21, 2020 /s/ Charles A. Lenns
Charles A. Lenns, Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Date: December 21, 2020 /s/ Michael 1. German
Michael I. German, President and Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: December 21, 2020 *
Henry B. Cook, Chairman of the Board of Directors

Date: December 21, 2020 *
Ted W. Gibson, Director

Date: December 21, 2020 *
Robert B. Johnston, Director

Date: December 21, 2020 *
Joseph P. Mirabito, Director

Date: December 21, 2020 *
William Mirabito, Director

Date: December 21, 2020 *
George J. Welch, Director

Date: December 21, 2020 *
John B. Williamson III, Director

*By: /s/ [Attorney-in-fact]
[Attorney-in-fact]

Attorney-in-fact
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Corning Natural Gas Holding Corporation
Corning, New York

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Corning Natural Gas Holding Corporation and
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”) as of September 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related consolidated statements of income,
comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity, cash flows for the fiscal years then ended, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements (collectively, the financial statements). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of September 30, 2020 and 2019, and the results of
its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Company’s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (PCAOB, United States) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in
accordance with U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and
the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or
fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting.
As part of our audits, we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ Freed Maxick CPAs, P.C.

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2013.

Rochester, NY
December 21, 2020
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CORNING NATURAL GAS HOLDING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30:

Assets @
Plant:
Utility property, plant, and equipment $ 139,743,289
Less: accumulated depreciation (30,853,644)
Total plant, net 108,889,645
Investments:
Marketable securities at fair value 2,193,112
Investment in joint ventures 264,640
2,457,752
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 411,700
Customer accounts receivable (net of allowance for
uncollectible accounts of $42,263 and $66,470, respectively) 2,330,342
Other accounts receivable 527,280
Related party receivables 9,032
Gas stored underground 995,341
Materials and supplies inventories 3,156,345
Prepaid expenses 1,801,883
Total current assets 9,231,923
Regulatory and other assets:
Regulatory assets:
Unrecovered electric and gas costs 1,966,184
Deferred regulatory costs 4,894,434
Deferred pension 7,352,839
Goodwill 918,121
Other 748,408
Total regulatory and other assets 15,879,986
Total assets $136,459,306

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2019

$ 121,041,738
(29,263,612)
91,778,126

2,184,170
2,597,919
4,782,089

314,341

2,436,221
335,481
5,818
1,238,826
2,747,194
1,726,353
8,804,234

1,122,459
4,264,396
7,294,641

562,703

13,244,199

$118,608,648



CORNING NATURAL GAS HOLDING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30:
Liabilities and capitalization
Long-term debt, less current installments

Less: debt issuance costs

Total long-term debt

Redeemable preferred stock - Series A
(Authorized 261,500 shares. Issued and outstanding:

260,600 shares at September 30, 2020 and 210,600 shares at September 30, 2019,

less issuance costs of $30,455 and $78,188, respectively)

Redeemable preferred stock - Series C
(Authorized 180,000 shares. Issued and outstanding:
180,000 shares at September 30, 2020 and -0- shares at September 30, 2019,
less issuance costs of $1,524 and $0, respectively)

Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt
Borrowings under lines-of-credit and short-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Customer deposits and accrued interest
Dividends declared
Total current liabilities

Deferred credits and other liabilities:
Deferred income taxes
Regulatory liabilities
Deferred compensation
Pension costs and post-retirement benefits
Other
Total deferred credits and other liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (see Note 14)

Temporary equity:
Redeemable convertible preferred stock - Series B
(Authorized 244,500 shares. Issued and outstanding:
244,263 shares at September 30, 2020 and 2019)

Common stockholders' equity:
Common stock ($.01 par value per share

($.01 par value per share. Authorized 4,500,000 shares. Issued and outstanding:

3,072,547 shares at September 30, 2020 and 3,047,060 at September 30, 2019)
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total common stockholders' equity

Total liabilities and capitalization

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2020

$44,291,626
(241,057)
44,050,569

6,484,545

4,498,476

6,271,068
7,698,269
2,293,980
339,809
1,617,976
529,301

18,750,403

7,575,832
3,243,054
1,366,256
9,407,774

193,945

21,786,861

4,954,937

30,725

28,144,702
7,747,197
10,891
35,933,515

$136.459,306

2019

$37,939,785
(276,885)
37,662,900

5,186,812

4,260,846
6,875,752
1,826,604
422,557
1,403,139
502,559

15,291,457

6,209,336
3,557,481
1,391,924
9,683,393

240,747

21,082,881

4,966,893

30,470

27,745,837
6,634,085
7313
34.417.705

$118,608,648



CORNING NATURAL GAS HOLDING CORPORATION AND

SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended September 30:

Utility operating revenues:
Gas operating revenues
Electric operating revenues
Total utility operating revenues

Cost of sales:
Gas purchased
Electricity purchased
Total cost of sales

Gross margin

Costs and expense:
Operating and maintenance expense
Taxes other than income taxes
Depreciation
Other deductions, net

Total costs and expenses

Utility operating income

Other income and (expense):
Interest expense
Other expense
Investment income
Loss from joint ventures
Rental income

Income from utility operations before income taxes
Income tax expense
Net income
Less Series B Preferred Stock Dividends
Net income attributable to common stockholders
Weighted average earnings per share-

basic

diluted

Average shares outstanding - basic
Average shares outstanding - diluted

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2020

$25,385,218
7,000,667
32,385,885

5,501,237
1,609,314
7,110,551

25,275,334

11,277,571
3,643,828
2,621,385

507.633

18,050,417

7,224,917

(2,567,064)
(656,892)
182,111
(51,928)
30,552

4,161,696

(960.338)

3,201,358
244,263
2,957,095

$0.97
$0.95

3,060,233
3,353,349

2019
$27,300,195
8,239,784
35,539,979

7,742,728
2.806.907
10,549,635

24,990,344

10,969,038
3,617,169
2,499,558

460,104

17,545,869

7,444,475

(2,325,642)
(616,403)
52,095
(142,656)
35,052

4,446,921

(1,322,689)

3,124,232
244,263
2,879,969

$0.95
$0.94

3,035,479
3,328,595



CORNING NATURAL GAS HOLDING CORPORATION AND

SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years
ended September 30:
2020 2019

Net income $3,201,358 $3,124,232
Other comprehensive income:

Net unrealized gain on securities available for sale

net of tax of $1,212 and $11,693, respectively 3,578 16,851
Total comprehensive income $3.204.,936 $3.141,083

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CORNING NATURAL GAS HOLDING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity
For the Years Ended September 30, 2020 and 2019:

Accumulated
Additional Other
Number of  Common Paid in Retained Comprehensive
Shares Stock Capital Earnings Income Total
Balances at September 30, 2018 3,021,851 $30,218 $27,320,162 $5,399,751 $90,593  $32,840,724
Adoption of accounting standard - - - 100,131 (100,131) -
Issuance of common stock 25,209 252 425,675 - - 425,927
Dividends declared on common
($0.575 per share) - - - (1,745,766) - (1,745,766)
Dividends declared on Series B
Preferred Stock ($1.00 per
share) - - - (244,263) - (244,263)
Comprehensive income:
Change in unrealized gain on
securities available for sale, net
of income taxes - - - - 16,851 16,851
Net income - - - 3,124,232 - 3,124,232
Balances at September 30, 2019 3,047,060 30,470 27,745,837 6,634,085 7,313 34,417,705
Issuance of common stock 25,487 255 379,360 - - 379,615
Stock option expense - - 19,505 - - 19,505
Dividends declared on common
($0.603 per share) - - - (1,843,983) - (1,843,983)
Dividends declared on Series B
Preferred Stock ($1.00 per
share) - - - (244,263) - (244,263)
Comprehensive income:
Change in unrealized gain on
securities available for sale, net
of income taxes - - - - 3,578 3,578
Net income - - - 3,201,358 - 3,201,358
Balances at September 30, 2020 3,072,547 $30,725  $28,144,702 $7,747,197 $10,891 $35,933,515

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CORNING NATURAL GAS HOLDING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES Consolidated

Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended September 30:

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation
Amortization of debt issuance costs
Non-cash pension expenses
Regulatory asset amortizations
Stock issued for services and stock option expense
(Gain) loss on sale of marketable securities
Unrealized gain
Deferred income taxes
Bad debt expense
Loss from joint ventures

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Gas stored underground
Materials and supplies inventories
Prepaid expenses
Unrecovered gas and electric costs
Deferred regulatory costs
Other
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Customer deposits and accrued interest
Deferred compensation
Deferred pension costs & post-retirement benefits
Other liabilities and deferred credits
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Sale of securities, net
Amount received from (paid to) related parties
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired
Capital expenditures
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Net proceeds under lines-of-credit

Debt issuance costs paid

Cash received from sale of Series C preferred stock Net

Dividends paid

Proceeds under long-term debt

Repayment of long-term debt
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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2020

$3,201,358

2,621,385
109,512
933,454
621,679
197,180

(49,823)

(139,865)

1,232,417
103,000

51,928

(113,216)
243,485
(129,402)
(63,856)
(843,725)
(1,243,599)
(185,705)

370,452
(76,839)
214,837
(25,668)

(1,267,271)

(223.361)
5,538,357

184,324
(3,214)
(1,893,081)

8.672.162
(10,384,133)

(72,126)
4,498,394
(1,859,564)
6,929,922
(4.553.491)
4,943.135
97,359
314,341

$411,700

2019

$3,124,232

2,499,558
109,977
941,428
677,139
239,481

3,994
(69,021)

1,308,524
162,170
142,656

802,815
382,090
(928,220)
(258,323)
250,568
(830,758)
20,734

(1,420,772)
14,865
175,741
(20,421)
(525,844)
(195.174)
6,607,439

91,286
200,513

6.628.162
(6,336,363)

213,395
(36,411)
(1,784,830)
5,179,146
(3.747.997)

(176.,697)
94,379

219,962
314,341



Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest
Income taxes (refunded) paid
Non-cash financing activities:
Dividends paid with shares
Number of shares issued as dividends

Supplemental disclosures of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Assumption of liabilities in business acquisition

Issuance of Series A preferred stock as consideration for business acquisition

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$2,829,244
$(341,777)

$201,940
12,287

$6,971,290
$1,250,000

$1,973,206
$14,165

$186,446
10,009



CORNING NATURAL GAS HOLDING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Corning Natural Gas Holding Corporation’s (the “Holding Company”) primary business, through its subsidiaries, Corning Natural
Gas Corporation (“Corning Gas” or “Gas Company”), Pike County Light & Power Company (‘“Pike”), Leatherstocking Gas
Company, LLC (“Leatherstocking Gas”), and Leatherstocking Pipeline, LLC (“Leatherstocking Pipeline”), is natural gas and electric
distribution. Corning Gas provides gas on a commodity and transportation basis to its customers in the Southern Tier of New York
State. Pike provides electric and gas service to customers in Pike County, Pennsylvania. As used in these notes, the term “the
Company” refers to the consolidated operations of the Holding Company, the Gas Company and its dormant subsidiary Corning
Natural Gas Appliance Corporation (the “Appliance Company’), Pike, and (from July 1, 2020) Leatherstocking Gas and
Leatherstocking Pipeline. The Company follows the Uniform System of Accounts prescribed by the Public Service Commission of
the State of New York (“NYPSC”) which has jurisdiction over and sets rates for New York State gas distribution companies and the
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (“PAPUC”) which has jurisdiction over and sets rates for Pennsylvania gas and electric
distribution companies. The Company’s regulated operations meet the criteria to and, accordingly, follow the accounting and
reporting of the Financial Accounting Standard Board (“FASB”) ASC No. 980 “Regulated Operations”. The Company’s
consolidated financial statements contain the use of estimates and assumptions for reporting certain assets, liabilities, and
revenue and expense. Actual results could differ from the estimates. The more significant accounting policies of the
Company are summarized below.

(a) Principles of Consolidation and Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the Holding Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries: Corning Gas, Pike, the
Appliance Company, and from July 1, 2020, Leatherstocking Gas and Leatherstocking Pipeline. All intercompany accounts and
balances have been eliminated.

It is the Company’s policy to reclassify amounts in the prior year financial statements to conform to the current year presentation.
(b) Utility Property, Plant, and Equipment

Utility property, plant, and equipment are stated at the historical cost of construction or acquisition. These costs include payroll,
fringe benefits, materials and supplies, and transportation costs. The Company charges normal repairs to maintenance expense.

(c) Depreciation

The Company provides for depreciation for accounting purposes using a straight-line method based on the estimated economic lives
of property and equipment as determined by the current rate plan based on the latest depreciation study. At the time utility properties
are retired, costs of removal less any salvage are charged to accumulated depreciation.

The depreciation rate used for Corning Gas utility plant, expressed as an annual percentage of depreciable property, was 1.9% for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2020 (“FY 2020”), and 2.0% for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019 (“FY 2019”). The NYPSC
allows the Gas Company recovery in revenues to offset costs of building certain projects.

The depreciation rate used for Pike, expressed as an annual percentage of depreciable property, was 2.5% for FY 2020, and 2.1%
for FY 2019.

The depreciation rate used for the Leatherstocking Companies, expressed as an annual percentage of depreciable property, was 3.4%
for FY 2020. The PAPUC allows Leatherstocking Gas to collect revenues from customers to offset cost of gas distribution system
build out.

(d) Accounting for Impairment

FASB ASC No. 360-10-15, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” establishes accounting standards to
account for the impairment of long-lived assets, and certain identifiable intangibles. Under FASB ASC No. 360-10-15, the Company
reviews assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
FASB ASC No. 360-10-15 also requires that a rate-regulated enterprise recognize an impairment when regulatory assets are no longer
probable of recovery. No impairment losses were incurred for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019.
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(e) Marketable Securities

Marketable securities are intended to fund the Gas Company’s deferred compensation plan obligations. Such securities are reported at
fair value based on quoted market prices. Unrealized gains and losses on debt securities classified as available for sale, net of
the related income tax effect, are excluded from income, and reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive
income in stockholders’ equity until realized. Unrealized gains and losses on equity securities are included as a component of
investment income on the consolidated statement of income. The cost of securities sold was determined using the specific
identification method. For all investments in the unrealized loss position, none have been in an unrealized loss position for more than
12 months. None are other than temporary impairments based on management’s analysis of available market research. In FY 2020
and FY 2019, the Gas Company sold equity securities for realized gains (losses) included in earnings of $49,823 and ($3,994),
respectively.

(f) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company has determined the fair value of debt and other financial instruments using a valuation hierarchy. The hierarchy, which
prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value, consists of three levels. Level 1 uses observable inputs such as quoted prices in
active markets; level 2 uses inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are either directly or indirectly observable; and
level 3, which is defined as unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists, requires the Company to develop its own
assumptions. The carrying amount of debt on the consolidated balance sheets approximates fair value as a result of instruments
bearing interest rates that approximate current market rates for similar instruments, and the carrying amounts for cash,
accounts receivable, and accounts payable approximate fair value due to their short-term nature. The assets used to fund the
pension plan and marketable securities, which fund the Gas Company’s deferred compensation plan, are valued based on Level 1
inputs.

The Company has determined the fair value of certain assets through application of FASB ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurements
and Disclosures.”

Fair value of assets and liabilities measured on a recurring basis at September 30, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Quoted Prices in Active Markets for

September 30, 2020 Fair Value Identical Assets/Liabilities (Level 1) Level 2 Level 3
Marketable securities $2,193,112 $2,193,112 $- $-
September 30, 2019

Marketable securities $2,184,170 $2,184,170 $- $-

Financial assets and liabilities valued using level 1 inputs are based on unadjusted quoted market prices within active markets.
The pension assets in note 12 are valued using level 1 inputs.
(g) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include time deposits, certificates of deposit, and all highly liquid debt instruments with original maturities
of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents at financial institutions may periodically exceed federally insured limits.

(h) Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are stated net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company estimates the allowance based on its analysis

of specific balances, taking into consideration the age of past due accounts, and relying on rules and guidelines established by
the NYPSC and PAPUC regarding customer disconnects.

(i) Gas Stored Underground

Gas stored underground is carried at an average unit cost method as prescribed by the NYPSC. Pike and Leatherstocking Gas do not
have any gas storage.

(j) Materials and Supplies Inventories

Materials and supplies inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, cost being determined on an average unit price
basis.
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(k) Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs are presented as a direct deduction from the associated debt. Costs associated with the issuance
of debt by the Company are amortized over the lives of the related debt.

() Regulatory Matters

Certain costs of the Company are deferred and recognized as expenses when they are reflected in rates and recovered from customers
as permitted by FASB ASC No. 980. These costs are shown as regulatory assets. Such costs arise from the traditional cost-of-service
rate setting approach whereby all prudently incurred costs are generally recoverable through rates. Deferral of these costs
is appropriate while the Company’s rates are regulated under a cost-of-service approach of the NYPSC and PAPUC for utilities (see
Note 5 - Regulatory Matters).

As regulated utilities, the Company defers certain costs for future recovery. In a purely competitive environment, such costs might
have been currently expensed. Accordingly, if the Company’s rate settings were changed from a cost-of-service approach and the Gas
Company, Pike, and Leatherstocking Gas were no longer allowed to defer these costs under FASB ASC No. 980, certain of these
assets might not be fully recoverable. However, the Company cannot predict the impact, if any, of competition and continues to
operate in a cost-of-service based regulatory environment. Accordingly, the Company believes that accounting under FASB ASC
No. 980 is appropriate.

(m) Revenue Recognition

The Company has an obligation to deliver gas and electricity to its customers. As gas and electricity are immediately available for use
upon delivery to the customer, the gas or electricity and its delivery are identifiable as a single performance obligation. The Company
recognizes revenues as this performance obligation is satisfied over time as the company delivers, and its customers simultaneously
receive and consume, the gas or electricity. The amount of revenues recognized reflects the consideration the Company expects to
receive in exchange for delivering the gas or electricity. Under Company tariffs, the transaction price for full-service customers
includes the Company’s energy cost, and for all customers includes delivery charges determined based on customer class and in
accordance with established tariffs and guidelines of the NYPSC or the PAPUC, as applicable. Accordingly, there is no
unsatisfied performance obligation associated with these customers. The transaction price is applied to the Company’s revenue
generating activities through the customer billing process. Because gas and electricity are delivered over time, the Company
uses output methods that recognize revenue based on direct measurement of the value transferred, such as units delivered, which
provides an accurate measure of value for the gas or electricity delivered.

The Gas Company records revenues from residential and commercial customers based on meters read on a cyclical basis throughout
each month, while certain large industrial and utility customers’ meters are read at the end of each month. Several meters are read at
the end of each month to calculate local production revenues. The Gas Company does not accrue revenue for gas delivered but not yet
billed, as the NYPSC requires that such accounting must be adopted during a rate proceeding, which the Gas Company has not done.
The Gas Company, as part of its currently effective rate plan, has a weather normalization clause as protection against severe weather
fluctuations. This affects space heating customers, and is activated when degree days are 2.2% greater or less than the 30-year average.
As aresult, the effect on revenue fluctuations of weather related gas sales is somewhat moderated.

Pike recognizes revenues for electric and gas service on a monthly billing cycle basis. Pike does not record unbilled
revenues. Pike does not have a weather normalization clause as protection against severe weather.

Leatherstocking Gas recognizes revenues for gas service on a monthly billing cycle basis. Leatherstocking
Gas does not record unbilled revenues. Leatherstocking Gas does not have a weather normalization clause as protection against
severe weather.

In addition to weather normalization, the Gas Company has implemented a revenue decoupling mechanism (“RDM”). The
RDM reconciles actual delivery service revenues to allowed delivery service revenues (which are based on the annual customer and
volume forecasts in the last rate case) for certain residential customers. The Gas Company will refund or surcharge customers for
differences between actual and allowed revenues. The shortfall or excess after the annual reconciliation will be surcharged or
refunded to customers over a twelve-month period starting September 1% each year.

Pike and Leatherstocking Gas do not have a revenue decoupling mechanism as part of their rate structure. Revenues are recorded
as energy is delivered, generated, or services are provided and billed to customers. Amounts billed are recorded in customer
accounts receivable, with payment generally due the following month.

For additional disclosures required by ASC 606, see Note 2.
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(n) Cost of Sales
Cost of sales consists only of the costs of purchasing gas and electricity sold during the period presented.

Gas purchases are recorded on readings of suppliers’ meters as of the end of each month. The Company’s rate tariffs include a Gas
Adjustment Clause (“GAC”) or Gas Rate Clause (“GRC”) which adjusts rates to reflect changes in gas costs from levels established in
the rate setting process. In order to match such costs and revenue, the NYPSC and PAPUC have provided for an annual reconciliation
of recoverable GAC and GRC costs with applicable revenue billed. Any excess or deficiency in GAC and GRC revenue billed
is deferred, and the balance at the reconciliation date is either refunded to or recovered from customers over a subsequent twelve-
month period.

As part of its rate structure for electric sales, Pike is required to file quarterly a statement of default services charges. The default
service charges are separated into two components: (1) the market price of electric supply, which is based on the forecast of electric
supply costs applied to service classification-specific factors to reflect each service classification’s load characteristics, forecast sales
and applicable losses, and (2) an electric supply adjustment charge to reconcile differences between default service revenues and
costs. The new electric rates go into effect on the first day of the month after the filing is accepted.

(o) Operating and Maintenance Expense

Operating and maintenance expense includes all personnel, administrative, and marketing expenses of the Company, as
well as expenses incurred in the maintenance of the Company’s utility property, plant, and equipment.

(p) Federal Income Tax

The Company uses the asset and liability method to establish deferred tax assets and liabilities for the temporary differences between
the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of the Holding Company’s assets and liabilities at enacted tax rates expected to be in
effect when such amounts are realized or settled. In addition, such deferred tax assets and liabilities will be adjusted for the effects of
enacted changes in tax laws and rates.

(9) Revenue Taxes

The Gas Company collects state revenue taxes on residential delivery rates. The amount included in revenue and taxes other than
income taxes was $300,286 and $300,876 in FY 2020 and FY 2019, respectively. Pike collects state taxes on total revenue. The
amounts collected were $409,266 and $535,984 in FY 2020 and FY 2019, respectively.

(r) Stock Based Compensation

The Holding Company accounts for stock based awards in accordance with FASB ASC No. 718. The Holding Company awards
restricted shares as compensation to our directors. The shares awarded become unrestricted upon a director leaving the board.
Directors who also serve as officers of Corning Gas are not compensated for their service as directors. Since these shares are restricted,
in recording compensation expense, the expense incurred is recorded at 25% less than the closing price of the stock on the day the
stock was awarded. The fair value of stock options is determined using the Black Scholes option pricing model and expense
recognition is based on the vesting provisions of the options granted.

(s) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing income available for common stock (net income less dividends declared on series B
preferred stock) by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per share reflect
the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common
stock.

For FY 2020, the impact of 10,000 stock options outstanding as of September 30, 2020 was determined to be anti-dilutive and were
not included in diluted shares. There were no outstanding stock options as of September 30, 2019. The net income and average shares
outstanding used to compute basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended September 30, 2020 and September 30, 2019 are
as follows:

FY 2020 FY 2019
Net income attributable to common stockholders $2,957,095 $2,879,969
Add Preferred B Dividends 244,263 244,263
Net income $3,201,358 $3,124,232
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Average shares outstanding - basic 3,060,233 3,035,479
Effect of Preferred B Shares 293,116 293,116
Average shares outstanding - diluted 3,353,349 3,328,595

(t) Collective Bargaining Agreement

The Company had 72 employees as of September 30, 2020, and 64 employees as of September 30, 2019. Of this total, approximately
one third are members of the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Local 139 labor union working under an agreement
effective until April 5, 2021.

(u) Joint Ventures

Through June 30, 2020, the Holding Company had a 50% investment in Leatherstocking Gas Company, LLC and Leatherstocking
Pipeline Company, LLC. The investment and equity in both companies (collectively, “Joint Ventures”) has been recognized in the
consolidated financial statements. On July 1, 2020, Leatherstocking Gas Company, LLC distributed it’s New York assets into a new
joint venture of which the Holding Company owns 50%. The Holding Company acquired the remaining 50% interest in

Leatherstocking Gas, LLC’s Pennsylvania assets and the remaining 50% interests in Leatherstocking Pipeline Company, LLC. See
Note 16. The Holding Company has accounted for its equity investments using the equity method of accounting based on the
guidelines established in FASB ASC No. 323. In applying the guidance of FASB ASC 323, the Holding Company recognized the
investment in the joint ventures as an asset at cost. The investment will fluctuate in future periods based on the Holding Company’s
allocable share of earnings or losses from the remaining joint venture which is recognized through earnings.

(v) Preferred Stock and Temporary Equity

The Holding Company classifies conditionally redeemable convertible preferred shares, which includes preferred shares subject to
redemption upon the occurrence of uncertain events not solely within control of the Holding Company, as temporary equity in the
mezzanine section of the consolidated balance sheets, in accordance with the guidance enumerated in FASB ASC No. 480-10
"Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity". The Company also analyzes the embedded conversion feature for bifurcation, based on
whether the host instrument has more equity-like or debt-like characteristics. Dividends are recorded as a reduction to retained
earnings. Issuance costs reduce the initial proceeds and are then accreted over the life of the instrument to the redemption amount.

The Holding Company records mandatorily redeemable stock as a liability in accordance with FASB ASC No. 480.
Dividends are recorded as interest expense and issuance costs are treated the same way as debt issuance costs.

(w) Adoption of New Accounting Guidance

On October 1, 2019, we adopted Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2016-02 “Leases” [Accounting Standards
Codification (“ASC”) Topic 842], including the amendments thereto, using a modified retrospective transition method of adoption that
required no prior period adjustments or charges to retained earnings for cumulative impact. From a lessee standpoint, on December
13, 2019, the Company made a material purchase for $280,000 of a previously leased section of 10" gas main. Prior to purchase, the
Company paid a nominal fee annually for the use of this 10* gas main. The Company did not change how this lease was accounted for
prior to purchase. From a lessor standpoint, the only material lease is the lease of space in the Company’s headquarters to a local
appliance company. This lease is an operating lease for which the Company receives less than $50,000 annually. The
accounting for the lease did not change upon adoption of the new standard and there was no significant impact on these consolidated
financial statements as a result of adoption of the new standard.

On October 1, 2018, we adopted ASU 2016-01 “Financial Instruments—Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities” (“ASU 2016-01”), ASC 606 — ‘“Revenues from Contracts with Customers” (“ASC 606”) and ASU
2017-07 “Compensation — Retirement Benefits .”

With respect to ASU 2016-01, we reclassified net, after-tax, unrealized gains on equity securities of $100,131 as of October
2018, from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) to retained earnings. We continue to carry our investments in eqdi»ty
securities at fair value, and there is no change to the asset values or total stockholders’ equity that we would have otherwise recorded.
Beginning in fiscal 2019, we are including unrealized gains and losses arising from the changes in the fair values of our equity
securities as a component of investment income in the consolidated statements of income.

On October 1, 2018, we adopted ASC 606 using the modified retrospective method, whereby the cumulative effect of the adoption is
required to be recorded as an adjustment to retained earnings. For FY 2019, the Company recognized revenues from contracts with
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customers in accordance with ASC 606. The revenues recognized were equivalent to the revenues that would have been recognized
had the Company not adopted ASC 606, and had recognized all revenues in accordance with ASC 605 — Revenue Recognition (“ASC
605”"). No prior period adjustment or charge to retained earnings for cumulative impact was required as a result of the Company’s
adoption of ASC 606. ASC 606 also provides for certain other disclosures which are included in Note 2.

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-07 “Compensation — Retirement Beneftits” which amends the guidance related to the
presentation of net periodic pension cost and net periodic postretirement benefit cost. The new guidance requires segregation of the
service cost component from the other components of net periodic pension cost and net periodic postretirement benefit cost for
financial reporting purposes. The service cost component is to be presented on the income statement in the same line items as other
compensation costs included within operating and maintenance expenses. The other components of net periodic pension cost and net
periodic postretirement benefit cost are to be presented on the income statement below the subtotal labeled, " Utility Operating
Income." Under this guidance, the service cost component is eligible to be capitalized as part of the cost of inventory, or property,
plant, and equipment. The other components of net periodic pension cost and net periodic postretirement benefit cost are generally not
eligible for capitalization, unless allowed by a regulator. The Company adopted this guidance effective October 1, 2018.

(x) New Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, "Financial Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326)," which provides a model,
known as the "Current Expected Credit Loss Model," to estimate the expected lifetime credit loss on financial assets, including
trade and other receivables, rather than incurred losses over the remaining life of most financial assets measured at amortized cost. The
guidance also requires use of an allowance to record estimated credit losses on available-for-sale debt securities. The new standard
is effective for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2022. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of
the guidance on their consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-14, "Compensation - Retirement Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans - General (Subtopic
715-20): Disclosure Framework - Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for defined benefit plans,” which amends the
existing guidance relating to the disclosure requirements for defined benefit plans. The new standard is effective for fiscal years

ending after December 15, 2020. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the guidance on their consolidated financial
statements and related disclosures.

In August 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-06, "Debt - Debt with Conversion and Other Options (Subtopic 470-20)
and Derivatives and Hedging - Contracts in Entity’s Own Equity (Subtopic 815-40): Accounting for Convertible Instruments and
Contracts in an Entity’s Own Equity," which simplifies the accounting for certain financial instruments with characteristics of
liabilities and equity, including convertible instruments and contracts on an entity’s own equity. The new standard is effective for
annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2021. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the guidance on
their consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

(2) Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The following tables present revenue from contracts with customers as defined in ASC 606, as well as additional revenue from sources
other than contracts with customers, disaggregated by major source.

For the year ended September 30, 2020

Revenues from Total utility
contracts with Other operating
customers revenues (a) revenues

Corning Gas:
Residential gas $14,627,661 $134,775 $14,762,436
Commercial gas 2,081,125 - 2,081,124
Transportation 4,359,621 177,991 4,537,612
Street lights gas 390 - 390
Wholesale 1,731,433 - 1,731,433
Local production 694,237 - 694,237
Total Corning Gas $23,494,467 $312,766 $23,807,233
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Pike:

Residential gas $1,139,761 $2,932 $1,142,693
Commercial gas 303,961 - 303,961
Total Pike retail gas 1,443,722 2,932 1,446,654
Residential electric 3,449,852 139,178 3,589,030
Commercial electric 3,288,582 - 3,288,582
Electric — street lights 123,055 - 123,055
Total Pike retail electric 6,861,489 139,178 7,000,667
Total Pike 8,305,211 142,110 8,447,321
Leatherstocking Companies (from July 1, 2020):
Residential gas 47,117 - 47,117
Commercial gas 31,031 - 31,031
Industrial Sales 53,183 ) 53183
Total Leatherstocking Companies 131,331 - 131,331
Total consolidated utility operating revenue $31,931,009 $454,876 $32,385,885

For the year ended September 30, 2019

Revenues from Total utility
contracts with Other operating
customers revenues (a) revenues

Corning Gas:
Residential gas $15,405,942 $583,941 $15,989,883
Commercial gas 2,453,170 (148,718) 2,304,452
Transportation 4,378,121 - 4,378,121
Street lights gas 468 - 468
Wholesale 2,236,053 - 2,236,053
Local production 698,203 - 698,203
Total Corning Gas 25,171,957 435,223 25,607,180

Pike:

Residential gas 1,321,742 16,718 1,338,460
Commercial gas 354,555 - 354,555
Total Pike retail gas 1,676,297 16,718 1,693,015
Residential electric 3,882,291 121,963 4,004,254
Commercial electric 4,108,681 - 4,108,681
Electric — street lights 126,849 - 126,849
Total Pike retail electric 8,117,821 121,963 8,239,784
Total Pike 9,794,118 138,681 9,932,799
Total consolidated utility operating revenue $34,966,075 $573,904 $35,539,979

(a) Other revenues include revenue from alternative revenue programs, such as revenue decoupling mechanisms under New York gas
rate plans and weather normalization clauses. This also reflects reductions in revenues resulting from the deferral as regulatory
liabilities of the net benefits of the federal Tax Act of 2017.
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The Gas Company has three major customers, Corning Incorporated, New York State Electric & Gas, and Bath Electric, Gas & Water
Systems. Although no customer represents at least 10% of our total revenue, the loss of any of these customers could have a
significant impact on the Company’s financial results.

(3) Utility Property, Plant, and Equipment

The following table summarizes fixed assets included in utility property, plant and equipment on the Holding Company’s consolidated
balance sheets at September 30, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019
Utility Plant $ 5,071,273 $ 5,037,937
Poles & Line 16,747,567 14,980,190
Pipeline 62,778,752 53,846,773
Structures 40,492,351 33,436,173
Land 1,825,453 1,787,034
Construction Work in Progress 5,208,487 3,892,686
All Other 7,619,406 8,060,945
Total Fixed Assets $139,743,289 $121,041,738

Useful lives for the above assets range from 35 to 55 years for utility plant, 30 to 65 years for poles and line, 66 years for pipeline,
from 45 to 47 years for structures, 50 to 65 years for land rights, and 5 to 25 years for all other and corporate fixed assets. Utility plant
includes station equipment, services, meters, and regulators (including all costs to install those assets). Poles and line include
poles, lines, and conductors. Total mains installed are represented in pipeline. Structures include both regulator station
buildings, and office and operations buildings. All other plant includes all general plant, except for buildings, land, and land
rights. Accumulated depreciation as of September 30, 2020 and 2019 was $30,853,644 and $29,263,612 respectively. Depreciation
expense for FY 2020 and FY 2019 was $2,621,385 and $2,499,558 respectively.

(4) Marketable Securities

A summary of the marketable securities at September 30, 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

Cost Basis Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Market Value
September 30, 2020:
Cash and equivalents $ 120,559 $ - $ - $120,559
Metlife stock value 30,701 - - 30,701
Government and agency bonds 143,960 9,312 - 153,272
Corporate bonds 143,196 3,951 - 147,147
Mutual funds 42,664 2,414 - 45,078
Corning Preferred A Stock 572,875 45,830 - 618,705
Equity securities 788,793 265,654 1,054,447
Commodities 21,881 1,322 - 23,203
Total securities $1,864,629 $ 328,483 $ - $2,193,122
September 30, 2019:
Cash and equivalents $ 64,457 $ - $ - $ 64,457
Metlife stock value 39,810 - - 39,810
Government and agency bonds 229,850 8,024 - 237,874
Corporate bonds 190,113 2,477 - 192,590
Mutual funds 22,359 486 - 22,845
Corning Preferred A Stock 572,875 41,247 - 614,122
Equity securities 866,600 145,872 - 1,012,472
Total securities $1,986,064 $ 198,106 $ - $2,184,170

The government and agency bonds have contractual maturity dates between January 5, 2022 and March 15, 2027. The contractual
maturity dates for the corporate bonds are from August 15, 2021 to April 17, 2028.
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(5) Regulatory Matters

Below is a summary of the Gas Company’s deferred regulatory assets as of September 30, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019
Unrecovered gas and electric costs $1,966,184 $1,122,459
Deferred regulatory costs 4,894,434 4,264,396
Deferred pension costs 7,352,839 7,294,641
Total deferred regulatory assets $14,213,457 $12,681,496

Unrecovered gas costs arise from an annual reconciliation of certain gas revenue and costs (as described in Note 1) and are recoverable
in customer rates in the year following the reconciliation.

The following table summarizes deferred regulatory costs at September 30, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019
2016 rate case costs $158,353 $253,353
2020 rate case costs 443,597 -
Deferred interest costs 740,612 478,433
Income tax assets and reconciliation 1,467,419 1,211,017
Storm costs 1,086,215 1,228,854
Leak repair costs 349,547 349,547
Delivery rate deferral 513,605 548,049
All other regulatory costs, net 135,086 195,143
Total deferred regulatory costs $4,894,434 $4,264,396

Deferred rate case costs are costs that were incurred to litigate prior base rate cases. These costs are recovered in rates over a period
determined by the NYPSC or PAPUC. All other deferred costs result from reconciliations approved by the regulators in the last base
rate case, or by specific Commission directives. Recovery of these costs will be determined by the NYPSC and PAPUC either
through a delivery rate adjustment, or the next rate case.

In fiscal year 2015, the Gas Company determined that it met the criteria to record the minimum pension liability as a regulatory asset in
accordance with FASB ASC 980-715-25-5. As a result of this change in estimate, amounts previously recorded as accumulated OCI,
net of tax have been recorded as regulatory assets in the current year in accordance with ASC 980-715-25-8, as well as a
related deferred tax liability. The amount of the regulatory asset was $6,307,265 as of September 30, 2020 and $6,520,833 as of
September 30, 2019. For periods after the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015, there will be no change to OCI because of the change
in estimate. Factors considered included: (1) consistent recovery of the pension costs on an accrual basis historically and in the current
rate case, (2) no indication of expected changes to recovery, and (3) the existence of a reconciliation process to track the recovery of
these costs. For these reasons, management determined the Gas Company met the criteria as set forth in ASC 980-725-25-5.

Also included in pension costs and post-retirement benefits is approximately $1,045,574 and $773,807 for fiscal years 2020 and 2019
respectively, for regulatory assets and (liabilities) related to pension and post-retirement costs. These amounts include both amounts
approved to be amortized in the previous rate case, and amounts being accumulated for the next rate case.

The Company expects to recover the cost of its regulatory assets. The Company expects that regulatory assets, other than
deferred unrecovered gas costs and deferred pension costs related to minimum pension liability, will be fully recoverable from
customers by the end of its next rate case.

Total regulatory assets on the consolidated balance sheets as of September 30, 2020 amount to $14,213,457 compared to
$12,681,496 at September 30, 2019. The regulatory assets include $1,435,762 at September 30, 2020 and $1,544,347 at September
30, 2019 that are subject to deferred accounting petitions, and $2,463,304 at September 30, 2020 and $1,545,857 at September 30, 2019
that will be considered in the Company’s next base rate case. The remaining items in regulatory assets are either approved in rates, part
of annual reconciliations approved by the NYSPSC and PAPUC, or approved through various commission directives.
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(6) Long-term Debt

Long-term debt, including the current portion, was as follows at September 30, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019
Note Payable - fixed interest rate of 4.16% with monthly installments through November
2027 $21,978,316 $24,549,520
Note Payable - fixed interest rate of 4.92% with monthly installments through May 2028 9,064,012 10,010,035
Multiple Disbursement Note — variable interest rate through October 2018, fixed at 4.92%
thereafter, with monthly installments through November 2028 3,035,067 3,335,974
Multiple Disbursement Note — variable interest rate through October 2019, fixed at 3.51%
thereafter, with monthly installments through November 2029 2,887,401 1,836,662
Multiple Disbursement Note — variable interest rate through October 2019, fixed at 3.51%
thereafter, with monthly installments through November 2029 1,955,778 1,643,043
Multiple Disbursement Note — variable interest rate through October 2020, fixed at 3.50%
thereafter, with monthly installments through November 2030 3,687,741 -
Note Payable — fixed interest rate of 4.89% with monthly installments through February
2029 431,485 479,627
Note Payable — fixed interest rate of 4.75% with monthly installments through February
2029 5,223,833 -
Note Payable — fixed interest rate of 4.75% with monthly installments through February
2029 560,752
Payroll Protection Program loans — fixed interest rate of 1.00% due November 2021 if not
forgiven 1,173,591 -
Vehicle loans - variable interest rate ranging from 4.81% to 5.83% 564,718 345,770
Total long-term debt 50,562,694 42,200,631
Less current installments 6,271,068 4,260,846
Long-term debt less current installments $44,291,626 $37,939,785

The aggregate maturities of long-term debt for each of the five years subsequent to September 30, 2020 are as follows:

2021 $6,271,068
2022 $6,178,252
2023 $5,687,656
2024 $6,007,762
2025 $6,210,093

On August 31, 2020, the Gas Company entered into a fourth amended replacement and restated credit agreement (“the August 2020
Credit Agreement”) with M&T Bank (“M&T”). The August 2020 Credit Agreement governs the Gas Company’s term note from
November 2017 with an original principal of $29,000,000, the Gas Company’s multiple disbursement notes, and the Gas Company’s
$8.0 million line of credit loan is subject to customary debt covenants. On November 30, 2017, the Gas Company entered into a long-
term debt agreement with M&T for $29 million at a fixed rate of 4.16% with a ten year maturity. Principal and interest payments on
this term note commenced on December 30, 2017, with 120 consecutive monthly payments of $296,651 due on the last day of each
month, with the unpaid principal and any unpaid interest due and payable in full on November 30, 2027. This term note may be
prepaid upon payment of a prepayment premium equal to the greater of 1% of the amount prepaid or the present value of the spread
between the 4.16% fixed interest rate and the then current “market rate” based on the most recent U.S. Treasury obligations with a
term corresponding to the remaining period to the maturity date. This term note is subject to the terms of the August 2020 Credit
Agreement.

On May 23, 2018, Pike entered into a credit agreement (the “May 2018 Credit Agreement”), and refinanced its outstanding loan with
M&T, issuing an $11.2 million term note pursuant to the May 2018 Credit Agreement. The note bears interest at 4.92%. The note is
payable in 119 consecutive monthly payments of $118,763 plus accrued interest, beginning on June 23, 2018, with a final
payment of unpaid principal and interest on the maturity date of May 23, 2028. The note is secured by all personal property of Pike.
Pike will owe a pre-payment penalty of 1% on any pre-paid principal made in advance of the maturity date. The loan is
subject to customary debt covenants.

On August 15, 2018, the Gas Company entered into a $3.6 million multiple disbursement term note with M&T which permitted draws
from time to time in accordance with its terms until October 31, 2018. At that time, amounts outstanding under the note totaling $3.6
million, converted to a ten year term loan payable in 119 equal monthly installments, with an additional final installment of unpaid
principal and interest due on November 30, 2028. Before converting to a term loan, the note bore interest at the one-month LIBOR
rate plus 3%. After October 31, 2018, the interest rate was fixed at 4.92%. Additional terms of this note are substantially the same as
those in the November 2017 Credit Agreement. This term note is subject to the terms of the August 2020 Credit Agreement.
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On June 27, 2019, the Gas Company entered into a $3.127 million multiple disbursement term note with Manufacturers & Traders
Trust Company (“M&T”) which permitted draws from time to time for capital expenditures in accordance with its terms until October
31, 2019. At that time, amounts outstanding under the note totaling $3.127 million, converted to a ten year term loan, payable in 119
equal monthly installments, with an additional final installment of unpaid principal and interest due on November 30, 2029. Before
converting to a term loan, borrowings on the note had a variable interest rate of the one-month LIBOR rate plus 3%. After October 31,
2019, the interest rate was fixed at 3.51%.

On June 27, 2019, Pike entered into a $2.072 million multiple disbursement term note with M&T which permitted draws from time to
time for capital expenditures in accordance with its terms until October 31, 2019.At that time, amounts outstanding under the note
totaling $2.072 million, converted to a ten year term loan, payable in 119 equal monthly installments with an additional final
installment of unpaid principal and interest due on November 30, 2029. Before converting to a term loan, borrowings on the note had
a variable interest rate of the one-month LIBOR rate plus 3%. After October 31, 2019, the interest rate was fixed at 3.51%.

On August 31, 2020, Corning Gas entered into a $3.718 million multiple disbursement term note with M&T which permitted
draws from time to time to pay down $250,000 of existing M&T debt, and for capital expenditures in accordance with its terms until
October 31, 2020. At that time, amounts outstanding under the note totaling $3.718, million converted to a ten year term loan, payable
in 119 equal monthly installments, with an additional final installment of unpaid principal and interest due on November 30, 2030.
Before converting to a term loan, borrowings on the note had a variable interest rate of 3.0% plus the greater of one-month LIBOR or
0.5%. After October 31, 2020, the interest rate was fixed at 3.5%. This term note is subject to the terms of the August 2020
Credit Agreement.

On December 4, 2018, Pike entered into a demand note with M&T for $510,000, payable in 364 days, unless otherwise converted into
a term note. On February 1, 2019, Pike converted the $510,000 demand note to a ten year term loan with a fixed interest rate of 4.89%
and monthly principal and interest payments of $5,397.

On March 11, 2019, Leatherstocking Gas received a $6,000,000 ten year term loan from Wayne Bank. Most of the borrowed funds
were used to retire debt from a previous lender. The interest rate for the first five years of the loan is fixed at 4.75%. For years six
through ten, the rate will be equal to the five year U.S. Treasury rate plus 2.25%. Prepayment penalties apply. The loan is secured
by Leatherstocking Gas and Leatherstocking Pipeline assets, and is guaranteed by Leatherstocking Pipeline. The
monthly principal and interest payment for this loan is $ 63,108. The term loan is subject to the terms of a March 2019 Credit
Agreement.

On August 30, 2019, Leatherstocking gas received a $615,000, nine and one-half year term loan from Wayne Bank. This loan was
designed to mirror the $6 million term loan described above. The interest rate for the first four and one-half years of the loan is a fixed
rate of 4.75%. For years six through ten, the rate will be equal to the five year U.S. Treasury rate plus 2.25%. Prepayment penalties
apply. The loan is secured by Leatherstocking Gas and Leatherstocking Pipeline assets, and is guaranteed by Leatherstocking Pipeline.
The monthly principal and interest payment for this loan is § 6,745. The term loan is subject to the term of an August 2019 credit
agreement.

On May 6, 2020, Corning Gas received a $970,900 loan under the U.S. Small Business Administration’s Payroll Protection Program.
All or a portion of this loan may be forgiven as part of the program. Payments on any amount not forgiven are expected to be deferred
for six months, then paid back over an eighteen month amortization period. Interest accrues at 1.0%. The proceeds from this loan are
restricted as to use, and cannot be used to retire existing debt.

On April 28, 2020, Pike received a $137,200 loan under the U.S. Small Business Administration’s Payroll Protection Program. All or a
portion of this loan may be forgiven as part of the program. Payments on any amount not forgiven are expected to be deferred for six
months, then paid back over an eighteen month amortization period. Interest accrues at 1.0%. The proceeds from this loan are
restricted as to use and cannot be used to retire existing debt.

On July 7, 2020, Leatherstocking received a $65,491 loan under the U.S. Small Business Administration’s Payroll Protection Program.
All or a portion of this loan may be forgiven as part of the program. Payments on any amount not forgiven are expected to be deferred
for six months, then paid back over a 54 month amortization period. Interest accrues at 1.0% The proceeds from this loan are restricted
as to use, and cannot be used to retire existing debt.

The Company was in compliance with all of its loan covenants as of September 30, 2020.
(7) Lines of Credit

The Gas Company has a revolving line of credit of $8.0 million with M&T subject to the August 2020 Credit Agreement. Outstanding
amounts bear interest at a variable rate determined by the Gas Company’s funded debt to EBITDA ratio calculated ninety days after
the end of each quarter added to the daily LIBOR rate. This line was renewed under the same terms with no expiration date.
The amount outstanding under this line on September 30, 2020 was approximately $5.1 million with an interest rate of 4.66%.
The maximum amount outstanding during FY 2020 was $6,803,816.
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On August 31, 2016, Pike entered into an agreement with M&T for a $2.0 million revolving line of credit at an interest rate equal to
LIBOR plus 2.75% with principal repayable on demand by the lender. This line was renewed under the same terms with no expiration
date. The amount outstanding under this line on September 30, 2020 was approximately $1.5 million with an interest rate of 2.94%.
The maximum amount outstanding during FY 2020 was $1,964,824. The agreement contains various affirmative and
negative covenants of Pike including, (i) a total funded debt to tangible net worth ratio of not greater than 1.4 to 1.0, (ii) a total
funded debt to EBITDA ratio of not greater than 3.75 to 1.0, and (iii) a minimum cash flow overage of not less than 1.1 to 1.0,
with each of the financial covenants measured quarterly based on Pike’s trailing, twelve month operating
performance and fiscal quarterly financial statements commencing with the period ended September 30,
2017; compliance, accounting, and financial statement requirements; prohibitions on changes in management or
control; any sale of all or substantially all of its assets; acquisitions of substantially all the asset of any other
entity; or other material changes to its business, purposes, structure, or operations which could materially adversely affect Pike.

On March 11, 2019, Leatherstocking Gas extended an existing $1 million line of credit from Wayne Bank to a maximum amount
0f $1,500,000. The line of credit is for an indefinite period, is guaranteed by Leatherstocking Pipeline, and is secured by
Leatherstocking Gas and Leatherstocking Pipeline assets. The interest rate on funds borrowed under the line of credit is the
prime rate, 3.25% at September 30, 2020. The amount outstanding under this line on September 30, 2020 was approximately
$1.1 million. The line of credit is subject to a March 2019 credit agreement.

(8) Preferred Stock

Series A cumulative preferred stock accrues cumulative dividends at a rate of 6.0% of the liquidation preference per share ($25.00),

and is expected to be paid on or about the 14th day of April, July, October, and January of each year starting October 14, 2016. The

dates of record for the dividends, if any, will be March 31, June 30, September 30, and December 31, immediately preceding

the relevant dividend payment date. On September 30, 2023, outstanding shares of series A cumulative preferred stock will mature and

be redeemed solely in cash at a redemption price equal to the liquidation preference per share, plus an amount equal to all accrued but

unpaid dividends, subject to our having funds legally available for redemption under New York law. In the event of a

fundamental change as defined on the Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation, holders of series A cumulative

preferred stock have the right to redeem their shares at a redemption price equal to the liquidation preference per share, plus an

amount equal to all accrued but unpaid dividends prior to the effective date of the fundamental change, subject to our having funds
legally available for such redemption under New York law. A fundamental change is generally defined as a change of control of
the Holding Company. The holders of series A cumulative preferred stock will have no voting rights except as specifically required by

New York laws or by the charter, as amended by the Certificate of Amendment, which allows voting rights under specific

circumstances. If dividends on shares of series A cumulative preferred stock have not been declared and paid for eight or more

consecutive dividend periods, the holders of series A cumulative preferred stock and series B convertible preferred stock, voting
together as a single class with holders of all other preferred stock of equal rank having similar voting rights, will be entitled at our
next special or annual meeting of shareholders to vote for the election of a total of one additional member of our board of directors,
subject to certain limitations. On July 1, 2020, 50,000 shares of the Company’s 6% series A cumulative preferred stock valued
at $1.25 million were issued in conjunction with the Company’s acquisition of the previously unowned interests in the

Leatherstocking Companies.

The series A cumulative preferred stock will, with respect to both dividend rights and rights upon liquidation, winding-up or
dissolution of the corporation, rank: (i) senior to all classes or series of the corporation’s common stock; (ii) senior to any other class

or series of the corporation’s capital stock issued in the future, unless the terms of that capital stock expressly provide that it

ranks senior to, or on parity with, the series A cumulative preferred stock; (iii) on parity with any class or series of the corporation’s

capital stock, the terms of which expressly provide that it will rank on parity with the series A cumulative preferred stock, including

without limitation, the series B convertible preferred stock and the series C cumulative preferred stock; (iv) junior to any other class of

series of the corporation’s capital stock, the terms of which expressly provide that it will rank senior to the series A

cumulative preferred stock, none of which exists on the date hereof, and the issue of which would be subject to the approval of a

majority of the outstanding shares of preferred stock voting as a class; and (v) subject to funds legally available and payment of or

provision for the corporation’s debts and other liabilities.

In accordance with FASB ASC No. 480, because of the mandatory redemption feature, series A cumulative preferred stock is treated
as a liability. The issuance costs are treated as debt issuance costs and will be amortized over the life of the instrument and a direct
reduction of the preferred A shares on the balance sheet. Unamortized debt issuance costs were $30,455 and $78,188 at September 30,
2020 and 2019 respectively. Dividends are recorded as interest expense. As of September 30, 2020, $97,725 was accrued for the
dividend paid on October 15, 2020. As of September 30, 2019, $78,975 was accrued for the dividend paid on October 15, 2019.
Preferred A dividends recorded as interest expense for FY 2020 and FY 2019 were $334,650 and $315,000 respectively.

Series B convertible preferred stock accrues cumulative dividends at a rate of 4.8% of the liquidation preference per share ($20.75)
and are expected to be paid on or about the 14th day of April, July, October, and January of each year commencing October 14, 2016.
The dates of record for the dividends, if any, will be March 31, June 30, September 30, and December 31, immediately preceding the
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relevant dividend payment date. At any time and from time to time after issuance, the shares of series B convertible preferred stock are

convertible, in whole or in part, at the option of the holder into shares of common stock at the rate of one-and-two-tenths (1.2)

shares of our common stock for each one (1) share of series B convertible preferred stock, subject to adjustment for standard anti-
dilution adjustments such as stock dividends or stock distributions; subdivisions or combinations of our common stock; and certain
tender or exchange offers by us or one of our subsidiaries for our common stock; in each case subject to certain exceptions. In

the event a holder of shares of the series B convertible preferred stock elects to convert any shares of series B convertible

preferred stock that would result in such shareholder owning more than 10% of the capital stock of the Gas Company under the

provisions of Section 70 of the New York Public Service Law, that holder would be unable to exercise the conversion right without

prior consent of the NYPSC. The Holding Company will not pay any cash to a holder in respect of such conversion or

otherwise settle any such conversion in cash, other than the right of the holder to receive payment in lieu of any fraction of a share
in exchange therefor. The NYPSC approved the exercise of conversion rights on any series B convertible preferred stock by our three
existing shareholders of 10% or more of our common stock.

On September 30, 2026, outstanding shares of series B cumulative preferred stock will mature and be redeemed solely in cash at a
redemption price equal to the liquidation preference per share, plus an amount equal to all accrued but unpaid dividends subject to our
having funds legally available under New York law. In the event of a fundamental change as defined on the Certificate of Amendment
to the Certificate of Incorporation, holders of series B convertible preferred stock have the right to redeem their shares at a
redemption price equal to the liquidation preference per share plus an amount equal to all accrued but unpaid dividends prior to the
effective date of the fundamental change, subject to our having funds legally available for such redemption under New York law.
A fundamental change is generally defined as a change of control of the Holding Company.

The holders of series B convertible preferred stock will have no voting rights except as specifically required by New York laws or by

the Holding Company’s Charter, as amended by the Certificate of Amendment, which allows voting rights under specific
circumstances as described in the Certificate of Amendment. If dividends on shares of series B convertible preferred stock have not

been declared and paid for eight or more consecutive dividend periods, the holders of series B convertible preferred stock and the

series A cumulative preferred stock, voting together as a single class with holders of all other preferred stock of equal rank having

similar voting rights, will be entitled at our next special or annual meeting of shareholders to vote for the election of a total of one
additional member of our Board of Directors, subject to certain limitations.

The series B convertible preferred stock will, with respect to both dividend rights and rights upon liquidation, winding-up or
dissolution of the corporation, rank: (i) senior to all classes or series of the corporation’s common ctock; (ii) senior to any other class or

series of the corporation’s capital stock issued in the future, unless the terms of that capital stock expressly provide that it ranks

senior to, or on parity with, the series B convertible preferred stock; (iii) on parity with any class or series of the corporation’s capital

stock, the terms of which expressly provide that it will rank on parity with the series B convertible preferred stock, including without

limitation, the series A cumulative preferred stock and the series C cumulative preferred stock; and (iv) junior to any other class of

series of the corporation’s capital stock, the terms of which expressly provide that it will rank senior to the series B convertible
preferred stock, none of which exists on the date hereof, and the issue of which would be subject to the approval of a majority of the

outstanding shares of preferred stock voting as a class; and (v) subject to funds legally available and payment of or provision for the

corporation’s debts and other liabilities.

In accordance with FASB ASC No. 480, series B cumulative preferred stock is not considered mandatorily redeemable as a result of
the conversion feature, presenting a contingency related to the redemption dates. Accordingly, this is not considered a
liability. However, as a result of the decision related to conversion and not reaching redemption resting with the holder, this instrument
has been classified as temporary equity in accordance with ASC 480. The Company determined that bifurcation of the embedded
conversion option feature was not required. Upon conversion, the instrument would be reclassified as permanent equity.
Dividends will be recorded each period in the consolidated statement of changes in stockholders’ equity and began to accrue
July 1, 2016. As of September 30, 2020, $61,066 was accrued for dividends paid on October 15, 2020. As of September 30, 2019,
$61,065 was accrued for dividends paid on October 15, 2019. The issuance costs of approximately $150,000 reduce the initial
proceeds and will be accreted until redemption or conversion.

Effective March 27, 2020, the Holding Company issued 180,000 shares of newly authorized 6% series C cumulative preferred stock at
$25.00 per share, for gross proceeds of $4,500,000. Series C cumulative preferred stock accrues cumulative dividends at a rate of
6.0% of the liquidation preference per share ($25.00), and are expected to be paid on or about the 14th day of April, July, October, and
January of each year starting July 14, 2020. The dates of record for the dividends, if any, will be March 31, June 30, September 30, and
December 31, immediately preceding the relevant dividend payment date. On September 30, 2026, outstanding shares of series C
cumulative preferred stock will mature and be redeemed solely in cash at a redemption price equal to the liquidation preference per
share, plus an amount equal to all accrued but unpaid dividends, subject to our having funds legally available for redemption under
New York law. In the event of a fundamental change, as defined on the Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation,
holders of series C cumulative preferred stock have the right to redeem their shares at a redemption price equal to the liquidation
preference per share, plus an amount equal to all accrued but unpaid dividends prior to the effective date of the fundamental change,
subject to our having funds legally available for such redemption under New York law. A fundamental change is generally defined
as a change of control of the Holding Company. The holders of series C cumulative preferred stock will have no voting rights except
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as specifically required by New York laws or by the charter, as amended by the Certificate of Amendment, which allows voting rights
under specific circumstances. The proceeds of this issuance were used to buy the previously unowned interests in the
Leatherstocking Companies, and to finance capital improvement projects at Pike and Corning.

The series C cumulative preferred stock will, with respect to both dividend rights and rights upon liquidation, winding-up or
dissolution of the corporation, rank: (i) senior to all classes or series of the corporation’s common stock; (ii) senior to any other class or
series of the corporation’s capital stock issued in the future, unless the terms of that capital stock expressly provide that it ranks
senior to, or on parity with, the series C cumulative preferred stock; (iii) on parity with any class or series of the corporation’s capital
stock, the terms of which expressly provide that it will rank on parity with the series C cumulative preferred stock, including without
limitation, the series A cumulative preferred stock and the series B convertible preferred stock; (iv) junior to any other class of series
of the corporation’s capital stock, the terms of which expressly provide that it will rank senior to the series C cumulative
preferred stock, none of which exists on the date hereof, and the issue of which would be subject to the approval of a majority of the
outstanding shares of preferred stock voting as a class; and (v) subject to funds legally available and payment of or provision for the
corporation’s debts and other liabilities.

In accordance with FASB ASC No. 480, because of the mandatory redemption feature, series C cumulative preferred stock is treated
as a liability. The issuance costs are treated as debt issuance costs and will be amortized over the life of the instrument and a
direct reduction of the preferred C shares on the balance sheet. Unamortized debt issuance costs were $1,524 and $0 at September 30,
2020 and 2019, respectively. Dividends are recorded as interest expense. As of September 30, 2020, $67,500 was accrued for the
dividend paid on October 15, 2020. There were no dividends accrued as of September 30, 2019 as no shares of preferred C
cumulative preferred stock were issued and outstanding. Preferred C dividends recorded as interest expense for FY 2020 and FY
2019 were $141,750 and $0, respectively.

(9) Stockholders’ Equity and Stock-based Compensation
For FY 2020, there were a total of 25,487 shares of common stock issued for $177,675 of services and $201,940 in connection with

the dividend reinvestment program ("DRIP"). For FY 2019, there were a total of 25,209 shares of common stock issued for $239,481
of services and $186,446 in connection with the DRIP. Shares issued were as follows:

Year ended September 30, 2020 Year ended September 30, 2019

Shares Amount Shares Amount
Dividend reinvestment program (DRIP) 12,287 $201,940 10,009 $186,446
Directors 12,600 167,041 12,600 189,782
Leatherstocking Gas Company 600 10,634 600 11,699
Officers - - 2,000 38,000
Total 25,487 $379,615 25,209 $425,927

Stock Options:

On August 31, 2020, immediately vested options to purchase 10,000 shares of the Company’s common stock were issued to the
Company’s new CFO. There were no stock options outstanding as of October 1, 2018 and no options were issued during FY 2019.
The following table summarizes this activity:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Number of Average Remaining Life
Options Exercise Price (years)
Outstanding at September 30, 2019 - - -
Granted 10,000 $16.50 9.92
Exercised - - -
Expired or Forfeited - - -
Outstanding at September 30, 2020 10,000 $16.50 9.92

The Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model was used to estimate the fair value of share-based awards under FASB ASC Topic
718. The Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model incorporates various and highly subjective assumptions, including expected term
and share price volatility.

The expected term of options granted was estimated to be the average of the vesting term, historical exercise and forfeiture rates, and
the contractual life of the option. The share price volatility at the grant date is estimated using historical stock prices based upon the
expected term of the options granted. The risk-free interest rate assumption is determined using the rates for U.S. Treasury zero-
coupon bonds with maturities similar to those of the expected term of the award being valued.
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The following table summarizes the assumptions used to compute the fair value of the stock options granted:

Year ended

September 30, 2020
Assumptions for Black-Scholes:
Expected term in years 5.0
Volatility 22.55%
Risk-free interest rate 0.28%
Dividend yield 3.52%
Value of options granted:
Weighted average fair value per option $1.95
Fair value of options granted $19,505

Dividends:

Dividends on shares of common stock are accrued when declared by the board of directors. As of September 30, 2020, $468,235
was accrued for dividends paid on October 15, 2020 to stockholders of record on September 30, 2020. As of
September 30, 2019, $441,494 was accrued for dividends paid on October 15, 2019 to stockholders of record on September 30,
2019. Total dividends for FY 2020 and FY 2019 were $1,843,983 and $1,745,766, respectively.

(10) Investment in Joint Ventures

The Holding Company had an interest in Leatherstocking Gas and Leatherstocking Pipeline, each of which was a joint venture with
Mirabito Regulated Industries, LLC (“Mirabito”), accounted for by the equity method. On July 1, 2020, Leatherstocking Gas
Company, LLC distributed to its members its franchises, engineering, and gas pipeline assets located in New York having a book value
of $0.532 million. These assets were then contributed to the equity of Leatherstocking Gas Company of New York, Inc. The
Company owns 50% of the common shares of the newly formed Leatherstocking Gas Company of New York, Inc. and
accounts for this investment using the equity method of accounting. Mirabito has the option to acquire the Company’s interests in
Leatherstocking Gas Company of New York, Inc., for a purchase price of $100,000, beginning on the earlier of a change in control of
the Company, or July 1, 2021, and ending on June 30, 2023. If this option remains unexercised on June 30, 2023, The Company has
the option for sixty days to acquire Mirabito’s shares for a purchase price of $100,000. Also on July 1, 2020, the Company
completed the acquisition of its partner’s 50% interests in Leatherstocking Gas Company, LLC, and Leatherstocking Pipeline
Company, LLC. See Note 16.

The following table represents the Holding Company’s investment activity in the joint ventures at September 30, 2020 and September
30, 2019:

2020 2019
Beginning balance in investment in joint ventures $2,597,919 $2,740,575
Acquisition of previously unowned 50% interest in the Leatherstocking Companies (2,281,351) -
Loss in joint ventures during year (51,928) (142,656)
Ending balance in joint ventures $264,640 $2,597,919

As of and for the year ended September 30, 2020, the joint ventures had assets of $0.527 million, liabilities of $0 million, and
combined net losses of approximately ($104,000). As of and for the year ended September 30, 2019, the joint ventures had combined
assets of $12.7 million, combined liabilities of $7.5 million and combined net losses of approximately ($286,000).

(11) Income Taxes

Income tax expense for the years ended September 30 is as follows:

2020 2019
Current $(272,079) $ 14,165
Deferred 1,232,417 1,308,524
Total $ 960,338 $1,322,689

Actual income tax expense differs from the expected tax expense computed at the statuary rate of 21% for the years ended
September 30, 2020 and September 30, 2019 as follows:

2020 2019
Expected federal tax expense $ 873,956 $ 933,853
Prior year tax recorded 7,433 80,160
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AMT credit refund (272,079) -

Federal income sur credit amortization 54,873 54,992
State tax expense (net of federal) 291,388 255,899
Other, net 4,767 (2,215)
Actual tax expense $960,338 $1,322,689

The tax effects of temporary differences that result in deferred income tax assets and liabilities at September 30 are as follows:

2020 2019
Deferred income tax assets:
Post-retirement benefit obligations $2,592,958 $2,762,794
NOL carryforwards 2,116,346 1,463,913
Customer contribution 1,290,631 1,241,931
Regulatory reconciliation tax assets 434833 350,320
Deferred compensation reserve 375,720 382,779
Other - 539,389
Total deferred income tax assets 6,810,488 6,741,126
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment, principally due to differences in depreciation 9,653,332 8,668,093
Pension benefit obligations 2,119,400 2,099,588
Regulatory reconciliation tax liabilities 1,120,246 769,335
Bargain purchase 665,456 665,456
Storm costs 336,618 370,269
Recoverable fuel costs 428,093 306,471
Unbilled revenue 63,175 71,250
Total deferred income tax liabilities 14,386,320 12,950,462
Net deferred income tax liabilities $7,575,832 $6,209,336

The Company has a federal, net operating loss carryforward of $3.8 million and New York and Pennsylvania state tax net
operating loss carry forwards of approximately $7.9 million as of September 30, 2020 that begin to expire in 2025. As of September
30, 2019, the net operating loss carry forwards were $3.7 million for federal and $6.2 million for state.

The alternate minimum tax (“AMT”) credit carryover of $0.3 million along with estimated tax payments of $69,698, were refunded in
the third quarter of fiscal 2020. The Company paid no income taxes during fiscal 2020.

The NYSPSC issued an order in Case 17-M-0815 that required the Company to quantify the amount of the deferred taxes that are due
customers as a result of the 2017 Tax Act. The PAPUC issued a similar order in Case M-2018-2641242. The estimated amount due
customers has been recorded as regulatory liability in the amount of $3,243,054 and $3,557,481, at September 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

The accounting rules for uncertain taxes provide for the determination of whether tax benefits claimed or expected to be claimed on a
tax return should be recognized in the financial statements. The Holding Company has evaluated its tax positions and has not identified
any significant uncertain tax positions. The Holding Company’s policy is to classify interest associated with uncertain tax positions as
interest expense in the financial statements. Penalties are classified under other expense. The Holding Company files a consolidated
federal income tax return and a consolidated New York State tax return. The Holding Company and Pike file separate company
Pennsylvania state income tax returns.

(12) Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefit Plans

There are currently three covered participants related to the deferred compensation obligation that are all former officers. The liability
on the consolidated balance sheets represents the present value of the future obligation. In 1997, the Gas Company established the
Rabbi Trust to fund a deferred compensation plan for certain officers. The fair market value of assets in the trust was $2,162,421 (plus
$30,700 in additional stock) and $2,144,360 (plus $39,810 in additional stock) at September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and the
plan liability, which is labeled as deferred compensation on the consolidated balance sheets, was $1,366,266 and $1,391,924 at
September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The assets of the trust are available to general creditors in the event of insolvency. In
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2020, the mortality assumption was based on the 2008 VBT Primary Male Smoker tables with generational improvements using scale
MP-2019 for two of the covered participants which resulted in a decrease in the liabilities of $25,668.

The Gas Company has defined benefit pension plans covering substantially all of its employees. The benefits are based on years of
service and the employee’s highest average compensation during a specified period. The Gas Company makes annual contributions to
the plans equal to amounts determined in accordance with the funding requirements of the Employee Retirement Security Act of 1974.
Contributions are intended to provide for benefits attributed for service to date, and those expected to be earned in the future.

In addition to the Gas Company’s defined benefit pension plans, the Gas Company offers post-retirement benefits comprised of
medical and life coverage to its employees who meet certain age and service criteria. For union participants who retire on or after
September 2, 1992, the Gas Company cost for post-retirement benefits is contractually limited and will not exceed $150 per month.
This contract is in effect until April 5, 2021. The monthly benefit for all non-union employees, who retire between the ages of 62 and
65, will be the lesser of 40% of the retiree’s plan premium or $150. After age 65, the Gas Company pays up to $150 a month for the
cost of the retiree’s supplemental plan. In addition, the Gas Company offers limited life insurance coverage to active employees and
retirees. The post-retirement benefit plan is not funded. The Gas Company accrues the cost of providing post-retirement benefits
during the active service period of the employee.

The following table shows reconciliations of the Gas Company’s pension and post-retirement plan benefits as of September 30:

Pension Benefits Post-retirement Benefits
2020 2019 2020 2019
Change in benefit obligations:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $25,599,774 $21,830,528 $ 1,334,577 $ 1,235,289
Service cost (excluding expected expenses) 649,444 458,813 18,533 16,492
Interest cost 985,296 1,035,097 37,021 47,755
Participant contributions - - 101,339 123,014
Actuarial gain (loss) 1,265,309 3,490,391 (10,472) 123,846
Benefits paid (1,263,895) (1,215,055) (181,632) (211,819)
Curtailments - - - -
Benefit obligation at end of year
27,235,928 25,599,774 1,299,366 1,334,577
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 17,540,516 17,322,720 - -
Actual return on plan assets 1,859,129 763,132 - -
Company contributions 1,423,285 764,594 80,293 88,805
Participant contributions - - 101,339 123,014
Benefits paid (1,362,505) (1,309,930) (181,632) (211,819)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 19,460,425 17,540,516 - -
Funded status (7,775,503) (8,059,258) (1,299,366) (1,334,577)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss/(gain) 6,161,807 6,348,307 23,547 36,636
Unrecognized prior service cost - - 121,911 135,890
(Accrued) prepaid benefit cost (1,613,696) (1,710,951) (1,153,908) (1,162,051)
Accrued contribution - - - -
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets
consists of:
Accrued benefit liability (7,775,503) (8,059,258) (1,299,366) (1,334,577)
Amounts recognized in the balance sheets consist of:
Accrued pension cost as of beginning of fiscal year (1,710,951) (1,403,838) (1,162,051) (1,189,766)
Pension (cost) (1,289,292) (1,326,030) (72,150) (61,090)
Contributions 1,423,285 764,594 - -
Change in receivable contribution (36,738) 254,323 - -
Net benefits paid - - 80,293 88,805
Accrued pension cost as of end of fiscal year (1,613,696) (1,710,951) (1,153,908) (1,162,051)
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Fair value of plan assets at end of year

Cash and equivalents $1,958,521 $ 633,981 B B
Government and agency issues 2,610,037 3,552,866 - -
Corporate bonds 3,241,935 3,261,451 - -
Fixed index funds 764,720 1,029,307 - -
Fixed income 1,625,944 993911 - -
Equity securities 9,259,268 8,069,000 - -
Total fair value of plan assets $19,460,425 $17,540,516 - -

The funded status of both plans total a deficiency of approximately $9.1 million and $9.4 million at September 30, 2020 and
2019, respectively, and is included in pension costs and post-retirement benefits on the consolidated balance sheets along with an
additional pension regulatory liability of approximately $333,000 and $290,000 as of September 30, 2020 and September 30, 2019,
respectively for amounts owed to customers. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2015, the Gas Company determined that it meets
the criteria to record these items as a regulatory asset in accordance with FASB ASC No. 980-715-25-5.

Amortization of unrecognized net loss for the retirement plan for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2020:

1 Projected benefit obligation as of September 30, 2020 $27,235,928
2 Plan assets at September 30, 2020 $19,460,425
3 Unrecognized loss as of September 30, 2020 $6,161,807
4 Ten percent of greater of (1) or (2) $2,723,593
5 Unamortized loss subject to amortization - (3) minus (4) $3,438,214
6 Active future service years of active plan participants expected to receive benefits 12.80
7 Minimum amortization of unamortized net loss - (5)/(6) $268,631
8 Amortization of loss for 2020-2021 $976,625

Amortization of unrecognized net loss for the post-retirement plan for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020:

Unrecognized net loss at October 1, 2019 subject to amortization $121,911
Amortization period 13 years
Amortization for 2020 - 2021 (loss divided by period) $9,378

The service cost component of our pension and other post-retirement plans, net of amounts capitalized, are reflected in “Operating and
Maintenance Expense” on the consolidated statements of income. The non-service cost components, net of amounts capitalized as a
regulatory asset, are reflected in “Other Expense” on the consolidated statements of income. Net periodic benefit cost includes the
following components:

Pension Benefits Post-retirement Benefits

FY 2020 FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2019
Components of net period benefit cost:
Service cost $744,444 $465,813 $18,533 $16,492
Interest cost 985,296 1,035,097 37,021 47,755
Expected return on plan assets (1,300,997) (1,279,864) - -
Amortization of prior service - - 13,979 3,552
Amortization of unrecognized actuarial loss 897,287 850,661 2,617 (6,709)
Net periodic benefit cost $1,326,030 $1,071,707 $72,150 $61,090

For ratemaking and financial statement purposes, pension and post-retirement represents the amount approved by the NYPSC in
the Gas Company’s most recently approved rate case. Pension and post- retirement expense (benefit) for ratemaking and
financial statement purposes was $933,454 and $941,427 for FY 2020 and FY 2019, respectively. The difference between the pension
expense (benefit) for ratemaking and financial statement purposes, and the amount computed above has been deferred as regulatory
assets and is not included in the prepaid pension cost noted above. The cumulative amounts deferred equal $1,045,574 and
$750,902 as of September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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Pension Benefits Post-retirement Benefits

2020 2019 2020 2019
Weighted average assumptions used to determine net
period cost at September 30:
Discount rate 3.64% 3.96% 2.21% 2.86%
Salary increases 3.50% 3.50% N/A N/A
Expected return on assets 7.50% 7.50% N/A N/A

For FY 2020 and FY 2019, the discount rate was prepared by utilizing an analysis of the plan’s expected future cash flows and high-
quality fixed-income investments currently available and expected to be available during the period to maturity of the pension benefits.
The discount rate used is an estimate of the rate at which a defined benefit pension plan could settle its obligations. Rather than using a
rate and curve developed using a bond portfolio, this method selects individual bonds to match to the expected cash flows of the plan.
Management feels this provides a more accurate depiction of the true cost to the plan to settle the obligations, as the plan
could theoretically go into the marketplace and purchase the specific bonds used in the analysis in order to settle the obligations of the
plan.

The expected returns on assets of the retirement plan and post-retirement plan are applied to the respective market-related value of
plan assets. For the retirement plan, the market-related value of assets recognizes the performance of its portfolio over five years,
and reduces the effects of short-term market fluctuations. The Gas Company’s Retirement Plan assets are invested by a manager that
reports at least annually to the Gas Company’s Investment Committee for review and evaluation. The manager has been given the
objective to achieve modest capital appreciation, with a secondary objective of achieving a relatively high level of current income
using a mix of cash equivalents, fixed income securities, and equities to structure a balanced investment portfolio. The
investment committee does not reserve control over investment decisions, with the exception of certain limitations, and holds the
manager responsible and accountable to achieve the stated objectives. The value of post-retirement plan assets are set equal to
market value.

For measurement purposes, a 6.50% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered benefits (health care cost trend rate) was
assumed for 2020. A 1% increase in the actual health care cost trend would result in approximately a 3.06% increase in the service and
interest cost components of the annual net periodic post-retirement benefit cost, and a 4.59% increase in the accumulated
post-retirement benefit obligation. A 1% decrease in the actual health care cost trend would result in approximately a 2.25% decrease
in the service and interest cost components of the annual net periodic post-retirement benefit cost, and a 3.80% decrease in the
accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation.

The Gas Company contributed $1,423,285 and $764,594 to the retirement plan during FY 2020 and FY 2019, respectively.

The estimated pension plan benefit payments are as follows:

2021 $1,513,952
2022 $1,508,365
2023 $1,518,476
2024 $1,552,685
2025 $1,614,898
2026+ $7,827,397

The Gas Company also maintains the Corning Natural Gas Corporation Employee Savings Plan (the “Savings Plan”). All employees
of the Gas Company who work for more than 1,000 hours per year and who have completed one year of service may enroll in the
Savings Plan at the beginning of each calendar quarter. Under the Savings Plan, participants may contribute up to 50% of their wages
subject to limits imposed by ERISA and federal tax law. For all employees, the Gas Company matches one-half of the participant’s
contribution up to a total of 6% of the participant’s wages. The plan is subject to the federal limitation. The Gas Company contribution
to the plan was $105,225 in FY 2020 and $95,203 in FY 2019.

(13) Segment Reporting

The Company’s reportable segments have been determined based upon the nature of the products and services offered, customer base,
availability of discrete internal financial information, homogeneity of products, delivery channel, and other factors.

The Corning Natural Gas Corporation (the “Gas Company”) is a gas distribution company providing gas on a commodity and
transportation basis to its customers in the Southern Tier of New York State. Pike County Light & Power Company (“Pike”) provides
electricity and natural gas to Pike County, Pennsylvania. The Holding Company is the parent company of all subsidiaries and has a
50% ownership in the Leatherstocking New York joint ventures. Leatherstocking Gas and Leatherstocking Pipeline are presented

49



together as the Leatherstocking Companies in the table below. Leatherstocking Gas provided natural gas service to
customers in northeast Pennsylvania. Leatherstocking pipeline has had no revenues since 2018. Corning Natural Gas
Appliance Corporation’s (the “Appliance Company”) information is presented with the Holding Company as it is has little activity.

The following table reflects the results of the segments consistent with the Holding Company’s internal financial reporting process.
The following results are used in part, by management, both in evaluating the performance of, and in allocating resources to, each of

the segments.

For the year ended September 30, 2020

Leatherstocking Holding Total

Gas Company Pike Companies* Company Consolidated
Total electric utility revenue $0 $7,000,667 $0 $0 $7,000,667
Total gas utility revenue $23,807,233 $1,446,654 $131,331 $0 $25,385,218
Investment income $181,978 $0 $0 $133 $182,111
Equity investment (loss) $0 $0 $0 $(51,928) $(51,928)
Net income (loss) $3,198,642 $295,258 $(124,639) $(167,903) $3,201,358
Income tax expense (benefit) $1,236,697 $156,769 $(54,597) $(378,531) $960,338
Interest expense $1,284,074 $669,002 $89,729 $524,259 $2,567,064
Depreciation expense $1,880,619 $658,667 $78,439 $3,660 $2,621,385
Amortization expense $278,408 $401,882 $3,042 $47,859 $731,191
Total assets $94,147,736 $29,165,796 $12,326,387 $819,387 $136,459,306
Capital expenditures $6,686,081 $1,986,081 $0 $0 $8,672,162
* from July 1, 2020

For the year ended September 30, 2019
Leatherstocking Holding Total

Gas Company Pike Companies* Company Consolidated
Total electric utility revenue $0 $8,239,784 $0 $0 $8,239,784
Total gas utility revenue $25,607,180 $1,693,015 $0 $0 $27,300,195
Investment income $52,095 $0 $0 $0 $52,095
Equity investment (loss) $0 $0 $0 $(142,656) $(142,656)
Net income (loss) $2,780,092 $806,675 $0 $(462,535) $3,124,232
Income tax expense (benefit) $1,122,170 $218,989 $0 $(18,470) $1,322,689
Interest expense $1,382,394 $654,136 $0 $289,112 $2,325,642
Depreciation expense $1,836,873 $659,025 $0 $3,660 $2,499,558
Amortization expense $336,562 $402,778 $0 $47,776 $787,116
Total assets $88,098,228 $27,415,639 $0 $3,094,781 $118,608,648
Capital expenditures $4,442,609 $2,185,553 $0 $0 $6,628,162

*Not consolidated in fiscal 2019

(14) Commitments and Contingencies

The Gas Company is a local distribution company and has contracted for gas supply from various sources to provide the commodity to
the city gates. The city gate is the transfer point at which we take ownership of the gas supply from local producers and
interstate pipelines and where bill metering starts. The Gas Company maintains storage capacity of approximately 736,000
dekatherms, and is responsible for managing its gas supply assets. At September 30, 2020, the Gas Company had
573,609 dekatherms at a cost of $995,341 in storage. As a result of these actions, we anticipate that the Gas Company will have
sufficient gas to supply our customers for the 2020-2021 winter heating season. At September 30, 2019, the Gas Company
had 596,454 dekatherms at a cost of $1,238,826 in storage. The Pike contract with Orange & Rockland should provide sufficient
electricity and natural gas to supply its customers for the 2020-2021 winter heating and summer cooling seasons.

The Gas Company follows its gas supply and acquisition plan which is a formal document that defines how we acquire natural gas to
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supply our customers. The plan is submitted to the NYPSC every year and adherence to the plan is a regulatory mandate. The
Company has secured the required fixed rate price and gas in storage for the heating season. Assuming no extraordinary conditions for
the winter season, gas supply, both flowing and storage, will be adequate to serve our approximately 15,000 customers.

Environmental considerations - the Company is subject to various federal, state, and local environments laws and regulations
and has established procedures for the ongoing evaluation of its operations to identify potential environmental exposures and
assure compliance with regulatory policies and procedures. Management believes the Company is in compliance with all
applicable regulations.

(15) Related Party Transactions

Related party receivables are expenditures paid on behalf of the Holding Company’s joint venture investments. The
outstanding receivable as of September 30, 2020 and September 30, 2019 was $9,032 and $5,818 respectively.

(16) Business Acquisition

On July 1, 2020, the Company completed the acquisition of its partner’s 50% interests in Leatherstocking Gas Company, LLC, and
Leatherstocking Pipeline Company, LLC. Immediately before the acquisition, on July 1, 2020, Leatherstocking Gas
Company, LLC distributed to its members its franchises, engineering, and gas pipeline assets located in New York having a book value
of $0.532 million. These assets were then contributed to the equity of Leatherstocking Gas Company of New York, Inc. The
Company owns 50% of the common shares of the newly formed Leatherstocking Gas Company of New York, Inc. and will account
for this investment using the equity method of accounting. The acquisition of the Company’s partner’s 50% interest in
The Leatherstocking Companies of Pennsylvania fits the Company’s goal of expanding its service offerings in northeast
Pennsylvania.

The Company applies the acquisition method of accounting for business acquisitions. Under the acquisition method, the purchase price
of an acquisition is assigned to the underlying tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their respective
fair values at the date of acquisition. The book value of the assets acquired was determined to approximate their fair value on
the acquisition date. Amortization of goodwill related to the Leatherstocking Companies acquisition is deductible for tax
purposes. Goodwill is included in the total assets of the Leatherstocking Companies segment for segment reporting. The goodwill
is primarily attributable to expected synergies and the assembled workforce.

Total consideration paid for the acquisition of the interests in the Leatherstocking Companies was $3.2 million, consisting of cash of

$1.95 million and 50,000 shares of the Company’s 6% Series A Cumulative Preferred Stock valued at $1.25 million. The Company’s

equity in the Leatherstocking Companies prior to the acquisition transaction, approximated the fair value of that investment.

There were no significant acquisition costs. The following is a summary of the purchase price allocation to the fair value
of the Leatherstocking Companies assets and liabilities acquired.

Consideration paid:
Cash $1,950,000
Series A Cumulative Preferred Stock 1,250,000
3,200,000
Fair value of previously held interest 2,281,351
Total 5,481,351
Assets:
Goodwill 918,121
Utility property, plant and equipment 11,060,742
Deferred debits 49,732
Cash 56,919
Other current assets 367,127
Total assets acquired 12,452,641
Liabilities:
Long term debt 5,985,631
Short term notes 894,644
Current liabilities 91,015
Total liabilities assumed 6,971,290
Total $5,481,351
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The results of the Leatherstocking Companies are included in the Holding Company’s consolidated operating results as of the
date the acquisition was completed. The following unaudited, pro forma information presents the Company’s consolidated
operating results as if the Leatherstocking Companies had occurred at the beginning of fiscal year 2019. The pro forma results do not
purport to represent what the Company’s consolidated operating results actually would have been if the transaction had occurred at the
beginning of fiscal 2019 or what the Company’s consolidated operating results will be in the future.

Fiscal Year Ended September 30,

2020 2019
Total Revenue $33,516,435 $36,761,240
Net Income $3,161,114 $2,963,516

(17) Subsequent Events

On November 18, 2020, the Internal Revenue Service issued Revenue Ruling 2020-27, related to the income tax treatment of expenses
paid with proceeds of Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”) loans. This ruling provides that expenses paid with PPP funds are not tax
deductible, even if the borrower has not received forgiveness of their PPP loans, if the borrower reasonably believes that loan
forgiveness will occur. This ruling supplements the IRS position on PPP loans that was announced in Notice 2020-32, issued in April
of 2020. The notice disallowed deductions for expenses on PPP loans that are forgiven under the PPP program. The Company’s PPP
loans totaling approximately $1.2 million have not yet been forgiven. The November revenue ruling would accelerate the non-
deductibility of the Company’s PPP funded expenses to its September 30, 2020 tax year end. The Company has treated this ruling as a
change in tax law subsequent to its year end, and will account for its impact (an increase in income tax expense of approximately
$300,000) in the first quarter of fiscal 2021. Assuming that the Company’s PPP loans will be forgiven, this increase in tax expense will
offset the expected recognition of income in fiscal 2021 from the forgiveness of PPP loans of approximately $1.2 million. The
regulatory treatment of these matters is uncertain.

Restricted Stock:
In October 2020, the Company issued to its new CFO, who became CFO on July 1, 2020, 4,500 shares of restricted stock. Restrictions

are based on continued employment with the Company and the restrictions lapse over a period beginning on June 1, 2021, and ending
on December 1, 2022. The value of the restricted stock is $74,250.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Henry B. Cook, Jr.
President, Triple Cities
Acquisition, LLC

Michael I. German
President & CEO, Corning
Natural Gas Holding Corp.

Ted W. Gibson
CEO, Classic City
Mechanical Contractors

Robert B. Johnston
Executive Vice President

The Intertech Group

Joseph P. Mirabito

CEO, Mirabito Holdings, Inc.

William Mirabito
Vice Chairman & Treasurer
Mirabito Holdings, Inc.

John B. Williamson, III
Chairman,
RGC Resources, Inc.

George J. Welch, Sr.
Partner, Welch Law Firm

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
Michael I. German

Charles Lenns
Matthew J. Cook
Russell S. Miller

Registrar and Stock Transfer Agent

Computershare PO
BOX 505000
Louisville, KY, 40233
800-368-5948

Chairman of the Board
Member Audit Committee
Member Nominating & Compensation Committee

Director

Chairman Corporate Governance Committee
Member Nominating & Compensation Committee

Member Nominating & Compensation Committee
Member Corporate Governance Committee

Chairman Nominating & Compensation Committee

Member Audit Committee
Member Corporate Governance Committee

Member Audit Committee
Member Nominating & Compensation Committee

Chairman Audit Committee
Member Corporate Governance Committee

Chief Executive Officer, President

Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer, and Corporate Secretary

Vice President - Operations/Customer Service

Vice President - Energy Supply/Business Development

Counsel

Korhman, Jackson, & Krantz
1375 East Ninth Street

One Cleveland Center, 29th Floor
Cleveland, Ohio 44114-1793
216.696.8700

Upon written request to the address below, we will provide, without charge, a copy of
our annual report on Form 10-K, including the financial statements and the financial
statement schedules, required to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commis-
sion pursuant to Rule 13a-1 under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amend-
ed, for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020.

Attn: Charles Lenns, Corporate Secretary
Corning Natural Gas Corporation
330 West William Street
Corning, New York 14830
(607) 936-3755

https://www.corninggas.com/corporate-and-investor-information/
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